Specific Procurement Notice National Competitive Bidding

Request for Bids Non-Consulting Services

Employer: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society
Project: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Project
Contract title: Hiring of Implementation Agency for Printing and Execution of Outdoor & Outreach Activities
Country: India
Loan No. /Credit No. / Grant No.: IBRD-P4830
RFB No: *AIWTD-11013/43/2023*Issued on: 19/02/2024

- 1. The Government of India financing from the World Bank toward the cost of the Assam Inland Water Transport Project, and intends to apply part of the proceeds toward payments under the contract for appointment of Creative Multimedia Advertising Agency for Content Development and Management of Communication Materials (Audio, Print and Audio-Visual Materials).
- 2. The Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society now invites sealed Bids from eligible Bidders for hiring of Implementation Agency for Printing and Execution of Outdoor & Outreach Activities.
- 3. Bidding will be conducted through national competitive procurement using a Request for Bids (RFB) as specified in the World Bank's "Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers, July 2016, Revised August 2018" ("Procurement Regulations"), and is open to all eligible Bidders as defined in the Procurement Regulations.
- 4. The bidding document is available online on <u>www.assamtenders.gov.in</u> and <u>https://www.aiwtdsociety.in</u> and Bidders will be required to register on the e-portal, which is free of cost. The bidders would be responsible for ensuring that any addenda available on the website/e-portal is also downloaded and incorporated.

а	Date of commencement for download of bidding		19/02/2024
	document:	•	17/02/2024
b	Date and Time of Pre-Bid Meeting		26/02/2024 at 1100 Hrs

c	Last date and time for Submission of bids	:	11/03/2024 at 1400 Hrs
d	Time and date of Time and date of	:	11/03/2024 at 1600 Hrs

- For submission of the bid, the bidder is required to have Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) 5. from one of the authorized Certifying Authorities authorised by Government of India for issuing DSC. Aspiring bidders who have not obtained the user ID and password for participating in e-procurement in this Project, may obtain the same from the website: www.assamtenders.gov.in . Bids must be submitted online on www.assamtenders.gov.in on or before the deadline for submission of bids, and will be opened online at the specified time and date for opening of bids, as given above. A Pre Bid meeting will be held at the office Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society, 3rd floor, Directorate of Inland Water Transport, Assam, Ulubari, Guwahati - 781007, Assam, India, email: dir.iwtdsas@gov.in on 26th February, 2024 at 1100 hours. The person attending the pre-bid conference should have valid authorization from the authorized signatory of the prospective bidder. The prospective Bidders shall intimate the name of representative(s) (not more than two from one organization) to the above e-mail ID latest by 11:00 Hrs (IST) on 23rd February, 2024 for confirmation. Any bid or modifications to bid (including discount) received outside e-procurement system will not be considered. If the office happens to be closed on the date of opening of the bids as specified, the bids will be opened on the next working day at the same time. The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids.
- 6. All bids must be accompanied by a bid security as specified in the bid document. Procedure for submission of bid security is described in Para 8.
- 7. The bidders are required to submit (a) original bid securing declaration in approved form, (b) Power of attorney on non-judicial stamp to State Project Director, Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society, 3rd floor, Directorate of Inland Water Transport, Assam, Ulubari, Guwahati 781007, Assam, India before the opening of the Bid given above, either by registered post/speed post/courier or by hand, failing which the bids will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened.
- 8. The address referred to above is:

Mr. Gaurav Upadhyay, IPS State Project Director Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society, 3rd floor, Directorate of Inland Water Transport, Assam, Ulubari, Guwahati - 781007, Assam, India Telephone: +91 361 2462677 Electronic mail address: dir.iwtds-as@gov.in Website: www.aiwtdsociety.in

Request for Bids Non-Consulting Services

Procurement of

HIRING OF IMPLEMENTATION AGENCY FOR PRINTING AND EXECUTION OF OUTDOOR & OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

RFB No: AIWTD-11013/43/2023 Project: Assam Inland Water Transport Project Employer: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society Country: India Issued on: 19/02/2024

Table of Contents

Part I – Bidding Procedures	1
Section I - Instructions to Bidders	3
Section II - Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	29
Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	35
Section IV- Bidding Forms	42
Section V - Eligible Countries	66
Section VI - Fraud and Corruption	67
Part II – Employer's Requirement	69
Section VII - Activity Schedule	70
Part III – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms	89
	0.1
Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract	91
Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract	

Part I – Bidding Procedures

Section I - Instructions to Bidders

Contents

A.	General	5
	1.	Scope of Bid5
	2.	Source of Funds
	3.	Fraud and Corruption
	4.	Eligible Bidders
	5.	Qualification of the Bidder9
B.	Contents of	of Bidding Document10
	6.	Sections of Bidding Document
	7.	Site Visit
	8.	Clarification of Bidding Document11
	9.	Amendment of Bidding Document11
C.	Preparati	ion of Bids11
	10.	Cost of Bidding11
	11.	Language of Bid11
	12.	Documents Comprising the Bid12
	13.	Letter of Bid and Activity Schedule
	14.	Alternative Bids
	15.	Bid Prices and Discounts
	16.	Currencies of Bid and Payment14
	17.	Documents Establishing Conformity of Services
	18.	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder14
	19.	Period of Validity of Bids15
	20.	Bid Security
	21.	Format and Signing of Bid17
D.	Submissio	on and Opening of Bids18
	22.	Sealing and Marking of Bids
	23.	Deadline for Submission of Bids

	24.	Late Bids	19
	25.	Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids	19
	26.	Bid Opening	19
E. E	valuatio	on and Comparison of Bids	21
	27.	Confidentiality	21
	28.	Clarification of Bids	21
	29.	Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions	21
	30.	Determination of Responsiveness	21
	31.	Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions	22
	32.	Correction of Arithmetical Errors	23
	33.	Conversion to Single Currency	23
	34.	Margin of Preference	23
	35.	Evaluation of Bids	23
	36.	Comparison of Bids	24
	37.	Abnormally Low Bids	24
	38.	Qualification of the Bidder	25
	39.	Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids	25
	40.	Standstill Period	25
	41.	Notification of Intention to Award	25
F. A	Award o	f Contract	26
	42.	Award Criteria	26
	43.	Notification of Award	26
	44.	Debriefing by the Employer	27
	45.	Signing of Contract	27
	46.	Performance Security	28
	47.	Adjudicator	28
	48.	Procurement Related Complaint	28

Section I - Instructions to Bidders

A. General

- Scope of Bid
 In connection with the Specific Procurement Notice Request for Bids (RFB), specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Employer, as specified in the BDS, issues this bidding document for the delivery of Non-Consulting Services, as specified in Section VII, Employer's Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this RFB procurement are specified in the BDS.
 - 1.2 Throughout this bidding document:
 - (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, including if specified in the BDS, distributed or received through the electronic-procurement system used by the Employer) with proof of receipt;
 - (b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
 - (c) "Day" means calendar day, unless otherwise specified as "Business Day". A Business Day is any day that is an official working day of the Borrower. It excludes the Borrower's official public holidays;
 - (d) "ES" means environmental and social, as applicable,(including Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA), and Sexual Harassment (SH));
 - (e) "Sexual Exploitation and Abuse" "(SEA)" means the following:

Sexual Exploitation is defined as any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another.

Sexual Abuse is defined as the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions.

(f) "Sexual Harassment" "(SH)" is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature by the Service Provider's Personnel with other Service Provider's or Employer's Personnel;

- (g) "Service Provider's Personnel" is as defined in GCC Sub-Clause 1.1; and
- (h) "Employer's Personnel" is as defined in GCC Sub-Clause 1.1.

A non-exhaustive list of (i) behaviors which constitute SEA and (ii) behaviors which constitute SH is attached to the Code of Conduct form in Section IV

- 1.3 The successful Bidder will be expected to complete the performance of the Services by the Intended Completion Date provided in the BDS.
- 2. Source of Funds 2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called "the Bank") in an amount specified in the BDS, toward the project named in the BDS. The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which this bidding document is issued.
 - 2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the loan account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, equipment or materials if such payment or import is prohibited by a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the proceeds of the Loan (or other financing).
- **3. Fraud and Corruption 3.1** The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in Section VI.
 - 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause their agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any initial selection process, prequalification process, bid submission, proposal submission and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.
- **4. Eligible Bidders** 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a state-owned entity

or institution subject to ITB 4.6, or any combination of such entities in the form of a Joint Venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the Bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. Unless specified in the BDS, there is no limit on the number of members in a JV.

- 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this Bidding process, if the Bidder:
 - (a) directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
 - (b) receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
 - (c) has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
 - (d) has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the Bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Employer regarding this Bidding process; or

- (e) or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the Employer's Requirements (including Activities Schedules, Performance Specifications and Drawings) for the Non-Consulting Services that are the subject of the Bid; or
- (f) or any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Employer or Borrower for the Contract implementation; or
- (g) would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; or
- (h) has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding document or specifications of the contract, and/or the Bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the Contract.
- 4.3 A firm that is a Bidder (either individually or as a JV member) shall not participate in more than one Bid, except for permitted alternative Bids. This includes participation as a subcontractor. Such participation shall result in the disqualification of all Bids in which the firm is involved. A firm that is not a Bidder or a JV member, may participate as a sub-contractor in more than one Bid.
- 4.4 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.8. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or subconsultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
- 4.5 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank, pursuant to the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines, and in accordance with its

prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework as described in Section VI paragraph 2.2 d., shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, initially selected for, bid for, propose for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address specified in the BDS.

- 4.6 Bidders that are state-owned enterprises or institutions in the Employer's Country may be eligible to compete and be awarded a Contract(s) only if they can establish, in a manner acceptable to the Bank, that they: (i) are legally and financially autonomous; (ii) operate under commercial law; and (iii) are not under supervision of the Employer.
- 4.7 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from Bidding by the Employer as the result of the operation of a Bid-Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration.
- 4.8 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 4.9 This Bidding is open for all eligible Bidders, unless otherwise specified in ITB 18.4.
- 4.10 A Bidder shall provide such documentary evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Employer, as the Employer shall reasonably request.
- 4.11 A firm that is under a sanction of debarment by the Borrower from being awarded a contract is eligible to participate in this procurement, unless the Bank, at the Borrower's request, is satisfied that the debarment; (a) relates to fraud or corruption, and (b) followed a judicial or administrative proceeding that afforded the firm adequate due process.
- **5. Qualification** 5.1 All Bidders shall provide in Section IV, Bidding Forms, a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule,

including drawings and charts, as necessary.

5.2 In the event that prequalification of Bidders has been undertaken as stated in ITB 18.4, the provisions on qualifications of the Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria shall not apply.

B. Contents of Bidding Document

6. Sections of Bidding
 Document
 6.1 The bidding document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 9.

PART 1: Bidding Procedures

- Section I Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II Bid Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV Bidding Forms
- Section V Eligible Countries
- Section VI Fraud and Corruption

PART 2: Employer's Requirements

• Section VII - Employer's Requirements

PART 3: Contract

- Section VIII General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
- Section IX Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section X Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Specific Procurement Notice Request for Bids (RFB) or the notice to prequalified Bidders, as the case may be issued by the Employer is not part of this bidding document.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Employer, the Employer is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, the Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the bidding document in accordance with ITB 9. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Employer shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the bidding document and to furnish with its Bid all

information or documentation as is required by the bidding document.

- 7. Site Visit
 7.1 The Bidder, at the Bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the locations of required Services and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for the Services. The costs of visiting the locations of required Services and its surroundings shall be at the Bidder's own expense.
- 8. Clarification of 8.1 A Bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding document shall contact the Employer in writing at the Employer's address specified **Bidding Document** in the BDS. The Employer will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of Bids within a period specified in the BDS. The Employer shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the bidding document in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so specified in the BDS, the Employer shall also promptly publish its response at the web page identified in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the bidding document, the Employer shall amend the bidding document following the procedure under ITB 9 and ITB 23.2.
- 9. Amendment of 9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, the Employer may amend the Bidding document by issuing addenda.
 - 9.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the bidding document and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the bidding document from the Employer in accordance with ITB 6.3. The Employer shall also promptly publish the addendum on the Employer's web page in accordance with ITB 8.1.
 - 9.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their Bids, the Employer shall extend, as necessary, the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.2 below.

C. Preparation of Bids

- 10. Cost of Bidding10.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Bid, and the Employer shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the Bidding process.
- 11. Language of
Bid11.1The Bid as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the
Bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Employer shall be written in

the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language specified in the BDS, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.
12.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:

(a) Letter of Bid prepared in accordance with ITB 13;
(b) Schedules: priced Activity Schedule completed in accordance with ITB 13 and ITB 15;
(c) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration in accordance with ITB 20.1;
(d) Alternative Bid: if permissible in accordance with ITB 14;
(e) Authorization: written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 21.3;

- (f) **Qualifications:** documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 18 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted;
- (g) **Bidder's Eligibility**: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 18 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to Bid;
- (h) **Conformity**: documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17, that the Services conform to the bidding document; and
- (i) any other document required in the BDS.
- 12.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 12.1, Bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful Bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the Bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
- 12.3 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.
- 13. Letter of Bid and Activity
 Schedule
 13.1 The Letter of Bid and priced Activity Schedule shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 21.3.

12

12. Documents Comprising the Bid All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

- 14. Alternative Bids14.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the BDS, alternative Bids shall not be considered. If alternatives are permitted, only the technical alternatives, if any, of the Most Advantageous Bidder shall be considered by the Employer.
 - 14.2 When alternative times for completion are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be included **in the BDS** and the method of evaluating different time schedules will be described in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
 - 14.3 When specified **in the BDS**, Bidders are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions for specified parts of the Services, and such parts will be identified **in the BDS**, as will the method for their evaluating, and described in Section VII, Employer's Requirements.

15. Bid Prices and 15.1 The prices and discounts (including any price reduction) quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Activity Schedule(s) shall conform to the requirements specified below.

- 15.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Activity Schedule(s).
- 15.3 The Contract shall be for the Services, as described in Appendix A to the Contract and in the Specifications (or Terms of Reference), based on the priced Activity Schedule, submitted by the Bidder.
- 15.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 13.1.
- 15.5 The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Services described in the in Specifications (or Terms of Reference), and listed in the Activity Schedule in Section VII, Employer's Requirements. Items for which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the Activity Schedule.
- 15.6 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Service Provider under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of Bids, shall be included in the total Bid price submitted by the Bidder.
- 15.7 If provided for **in the BDS**, the rates and prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with and the provisions of Clause 6.6 of the General Conditions of Contract and/or Special Conditions of Contract. The Bidder shall submit with the Bid all the information required under the Special Conditions of Contract and of the General Conditions of

Contract.

- 15.8 For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services, a breakdown of the lump-sum price shall be provided by the Bidder in the form of Appendices D and E to the Contract.
- 16. Currencies of Bid and Bid and the currency (ies) of the Bid and the currency (ies) of payments shall be the same. The Bidder shall quote in the currency of the Employer's Country the portion of the Bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in the currency of the Employer's Country, unless otherwise specified in the BDS.
 - 16.2 The Bidder may express the Bid price in any currency. If the Bidder wishes to be paid in a combination of amounts in different currencies, it may quote its price accordingly but shall use no more than three foreign currencies in addition to the currency of the Employer's Country.
 - 16.3 Bidders may be required by the Employer to justify their foreign currency requirements and to substantiate that the amounts included in the Lump-sum are reasonable and responsive to ITB 16.1 and 16.2.

17. Documents Establishing Conformity of Services

18. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder

- 17.1 To establish the conformity of the Non-Consulting Services to the bidding document, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that Services provided conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Employer's Requirements.
 - 17.2 Standards for provision of the Non-Consulting Services are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality provided that it demonstrates, to the Employer's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII, Employer's Requirements.
 - 18.1 To establish Bidder's their eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
 - 18.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the Contract if its Bid is accepted shall establish to the Employer's satisfaction that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
 - 18.3 All Bidders shall provide in Section IV, Bidding Forms, a preliminary description of the proposed methodology, work plan and schedule.
 - 18.4 In the event that prequalification of Bidders has been undertaken as stated **in the BDS**, only Bids from prequalified Bidders shall be considered for award of Contract. These qualified Bidders should submit with their Bids any information updating their original

15

prequalification applications or, alternatively, confirm in their Bids that the originally submitted prequalification information remains essentially correct as of the date of Bid submission.

- 18.5 If prequalification has not taken place before Bidding, the qualification criteria for the Bidders are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 19.1 Bids shall remain valid until the date specified in the BDS or any extended date if amended by the Employer in accordance with ITB 9.A Bid that is not valid until the date specified in the BDS, or any extended date if amended by the Employer in accordance with ITB 9, shall be rejected by the Employer as nonresponsive.
 - 19.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the date of expiration of the Bid validity, the Employer may request Bidders to extend the period of validity of their Bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB 20, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its Bid, except as provided in ITB 19.3.
 - 19.3 If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity specified in accordance with ITB 19.1, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
 - (a) in the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the Bid price adjusted by the factor specified **in the BDS**;
 - (b) in the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made; or
 - (c) in any case, Bid evaluation shall be based on the Bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.
- **20. Bid Security** 20.1 The Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a Bid security, as specified **in the BDS**, in original form and, in the case of a Bid Security, in the amount and currency specified **in the BDS**.
 - 20.2 A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
 - 20.3 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 20.1, the Bid Security shall be a demand guarantee, and in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
 - (a) an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or non-bank

19. Period of Validity of Bids financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);

- (b) an irrevocable letter of credit;
- (c) a cashier's or certified check; or
- (d) another security specified in the BDS,

from a reputable source and an eligible country. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a non-bank financial institution located outside the Employer's Country, the issuing non-bank financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country to make it enforceable, unless the Employer has agreed in writing, prior to Bid submission, that a correspondent financial institution is not required. In the case of a bank guarantee, the Bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Employer prior to Bid submission. The Bid Security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original date of expiry of the Bid validity, or beyond any extended date if requested under ITB 19.2.

- 20.4 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 20.1, any Bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
- 20.5 If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 20.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 46.
- 20.6 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance Security.
- 20.7 The Bid Security may be forfeited:
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extended date provided by the Bidder; or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 45; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 46.
- 20.8 The Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the

name of the JV that submits the Bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of Bidding, the Bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 12.2.

- 20.9 If a Bid Security is not required in the BDS, pursuant to ITB 20.1, and
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its Bid prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Bidder; or
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 45; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 46;

the Borrower may, if provided for **in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Employer for a period of time as stated **in the BDS**.

- 21. Format and Signing of Bid21.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the Bid as described in ITB 12, bound with the volume containing the Form of Bid, and clearly marked "Original." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the Bid, in the number specified in the BDS, and clearly marked as "Copies." In the event of discrepancy between them, the original shall prevail.
 - 21.2 Bidders shall mark as "CONFIDENTIAL" information in their Bids which is confidential to their business. This may include proprietary information, trade secrets, or commercial or financially sensitive information.
 - 21.3 The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified **in the BDS** and shall be attached to the Bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.
 - 21.4 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.

21.5 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the Bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

22. Sealing and
Marking of
Bids22.1 The Bidder shall deliver the Bid in a single, sealed envelope. Within
the single envelope the Bidder shall place the following separate,
sealed envelopes:

- (a) in an envelope marked "ORIGINAL", all documents comprising the Bid, as described in ITB 12; and
- (b) in an envelope marked "COPIES", all required copies of the Bid; and
- (c) if alternative Bids are permitted in accordance with ITB 14, and if relevant:
 - (i) in an envelope marked "ORIGINAL ALTERNATIVE BID", the alternative Bid; and
 - (ii) in the envelope marked "COPIES ALTERNATIVE BID" all required copies of the alternative Bid.
- 22.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) bear the name and address of the Bidder;
 - (b) be addressed to the Employer in accordance with ITB 23.1;
 - (c) bear the specific identification of this Bidding process specified in accordance with BDS 1.1; and
 - (d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for Bid opening.
- 22.3 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

23. Deadline for Submission of Bids
23.1 Bids must be received by the Employer at the address and no later than the date and time specified in the BDS. When so specified in the BDS, Bidders shall have the option of submitting their Bids electronically. Bidders submitting Bids electronically shall follow the electronic Bid submission procedures specified in the BDS.

23.2 The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Bids by amending the bidding document in accordance with ITB 9, in which case all rights and obligations of the

18

Employer and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

- 24. Late Bids 24.1 The Employer shall not consider any Bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 23. Any Bid received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of Bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 25. Withdrawal, Substitution and Modification of Bids
 25.1 A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITB 21.3, (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the Bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - (a) prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 21 and ITB 22 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," or "MODIFICATION;" and
 - (b) received by the Employer prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of Bids, in accordance with ITB 23.
 - 25.2 Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 25.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.
 - 25.3 No Bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of Bids and the date of expiry of the Bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extended date thereof.
- 26. Bid Opening 26.1 Except as in the cases specified in ITB 23 and ITB 25.2, the Employer shall, at the Bid opening, publicly open and read out all Bids received by the deadline at the date, time and place specified in the BDS in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend. Any specific electronic Bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 23.1, shall be as specified in the BDS.
 - 26.2 First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. If the withdrawal envelope does not contain a copy of the "power of attorney" confirming the signature as a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, the corresponding Bid will be opened. No Bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a

valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Bid opening.

- 26.3 Next, envelopes marked "SUBSTITUTION" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at Bid opening.
- 26.4 Next, envelopes marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening.
- 26.5 Next, all remaining envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative Bids; the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if required; and any other details as the Employer may consider appropriate.
- 26.6 Only Bids, alternative Bids and discounts that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further. The Letter of Bid and the priced Activity Schedule are to be initialed by representatives of the Employer attending Bid opening in the manner specified **in the BDS**.
- 26.7 The Employer shall neither discuss the merits of any Bid nor reject any Bid (except for late Bids, in accordance with ITB 24.1).
- 26.8 The Employer shall prepare a record of the Bid opening that shall include, as a minimum:
 - (a) the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification;
 - (b) the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts; and
 - (c) any alternative Bids;
 - (d) the presence or absence of a Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, if one was required.
- 26.9 The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of

Reservations.

and Omissions

the record shall be distributed to all Bidders.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- **27. Confidentiality** 27.1 Information relating to the evaluation of Bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to Bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the Bidding process until information on the Intention to Award the Contract is transmitted to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 41.
 - 27.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Employer in the evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
 - 27.3 Notwithstanding ITB 27.2, from the time of Bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the Bidding process, it should do so in writing.
- 28. Clarification of 28.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of Bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Employer may, at the Employer's **Bids** discretion, ask any Bidder for clarification of its Bid including breakdowns of the prices in the Activity Schedule, and other information that the Employer may require. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid and that is not in response to a request by the Employer shall not be considered. The Employer's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the Bids, in accordance with ITB 32.
 - 28.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its Bid by the date and time set in the Employer's request for clarification, its Bid may be rejected.
- **29. Deviations,** 29.1 During the evaluation of Bids, the following definitions apply:
 - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the bidding document;
 - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the bidding document; and
 - (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the bidding document.
- **30. Determination** 30.1 The Employer's determination of a Bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the Bid itself, as defined in ITB 12.

- **Responsiveness** 30.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the bidding document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
 - (a) if accepted, would:
 - (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Non-Consulting Services specified in the Contract; or
 - (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding document, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
 - (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Bidders presenting substantially responsive Bids.
 - 30.3 The Employer shall examine the technical aspects of the Bid submitted in accordance with ITB 17 and ITB 18, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Employer's Requirements have been met without any material deviation or reservation, or omission.
 - 30.4 If a Bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of bidding document, it shall be rejected by the Employer and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.
- 31. Nonconformitie 31.1 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.Omissions
 - 31.2 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the Bid related to documentation requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such nonconformities shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.
 - 31.3 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component by adding the average price of the item or component quoted by substantially responsive Bidders. If the price of the item or component cannot be derived from the price of other substantially responsive Bids, the Employer shall use its best

estimate.

- 32. Correction of Arithmetical Errors32.1 Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Employer shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
 - (a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
 - (b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
 - (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
 - 32.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 32.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid.
- 33. Conversion to Single Currency
 33.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted in a single currency as specified in the BDS.
- **34. Margin of Preference** 34.1 A margin of preference shall not apply.
- 35. Evaluation of Bids35.1 The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this ITB and Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted. By applying the criteria and methodologies, the Employer shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:
 - (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
 - (b) the lowest evaluated cost.
 - 35.2 In evaluating the Bids, the Employer will determine for each Bid the evaluated Bid cost by adjusting the Bid price as follows:
 - (a) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in

accordance with ITB 32.1;

- (b) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 15.4;
- (c) converting the amount resulting from applying (a) and (b) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 33;
- (d) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 31.3;
- (e) excluding provisional sums and the provision, if any, for contingencies in the Activity Schedule but including Daywork, when requested in the Specifications (or Terms of Reference); and
- (f) the additional evaluation factors are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 35.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
- 35.4 If this bidding document allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated cost of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- **36. Comparison of Bids 36.1** The Employer shall compare the evaluated costs of all substantially responsive Bids established in accordance with ITB 35.2 to determine the Bid that has the lowest evaluated cost.
- 37. Abnormally Low Bid is one where the Bid price, in combination with other constituent elements of the Bid, appears unreasonably low to the extent that the Bid price raises material concerns as to the capability of the Bidder to perform the Contract for the offered Bid price.
 - 37.2 In the event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Bid, the Employer shall seek written clarifications from the Bidder, including detailed price analyses of its Bid price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, proposed methodology, schedule, allocation of risks and responsibilities and any other requirements of the bidding document.
 - 37.3 After evaluation of the price analyses, in the event that the Employer determines that the Bidder has failed to demonstrate its capability to

40. Standstill

Period

perform the Contract for the offered Bid Price, the Employer shall reject the Bid.

38. Qualification of the Bidder38.1 The Employer shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated cost and substantially responsive Bid is eligible and meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

- 38.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 18. The determination shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Bidder's subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors or any other firm(s) different from the Bidder that submitted the Bid.
- 38.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the Bid, in which event the Employer shall proceed to the Bidder who offers a substantially responsive Bid with the next lowest evaluated cost to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.
- 39. Employer's Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids
 39.1 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to annul the Bidding process and reject all Bids at any time prior to Contract Award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all Bids submitted and specifically, Bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.
 - 40.1 The Contract shall not be awarded earlier than the expiry of the Standstill Period. The Standstill Period shall be ten (10) Business Days unless extended in accordance with ITB 44.The Standstill Period commences the day after the date the Employer has transmitted to each Bidder the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract. Where only one Bid is submitted, or if this contract is in response to an emergency situation recognized by the Bank, the Standstill Period shall not apply
- 41. Notification of Intention of Intention of Award41.1 The Employer shall send to each Bidder, the Notification of Intention to Award the Contract to the successful Bidder. The Notification of Intention to Award shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
 - (a) the name and address of the Bidder submitting the successful Bid;
 - (b) the Contract price of the successful Bid;
 - (c) the names of all Bidders who submitted Bids, and their Bid

25

prices as readout and as evaluated;

- (d) a statement of the reason(s) the Bid (of the unsuccessful Bidder to whom the notification is addressed) was unsuccessful;
- (e) the expiry date of the Standstill Period; and
- (f) instructions on how to request a debriefing or submit a complaint during the standstill period.

F. Award of Contract

- 42. Award 42.1 Subject to ITB 39, the Employer shall award the Contract to the successful Bidder. This is the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid of the Bidder that meets the qualification criteria and whose Bid has been determined to be:
 - (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document; and
 - (b) the lowest evaluated cost.
- 43. Notification of Award
 43.1 Prior to the date of expiry of the Bid validity and upon expiry of the Standstill Period, specified in ITB 40.1, or any extension thereof, and, upon satisfactorily addressing any complaint that has been filed within the Standstill Period, the Employer shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification of award (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Employer will pay the Service Provider in consideration of the execution of the Contract Forms called "the Contract Price").
 - 43.2 Within ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer shall publish the Contract Award Notice which shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:
 - (a) name and address of the Employer;
 - (b) name and reference number of the contract being awarded, and the selection method used;
 - (c) names of all Bidders that submitted Bids, and their Bid prices as read out at Bid opening, and as evaluated;
 - (d) name of Bidders whose Bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection;
 - (e) the name of the successful Bidder, the final total contract price,

the contract duration and a summary of its scope; and

- (f) successful Bidder's Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, if specified in BDS ITB 45.1.
- 43.3 The Contract Award Notice shall be published on the Employer's website with free access if available, or in at least one newspaper of national circulation in the Employer's Country, or in the official gazette. The Employer shall also publish the contract award notice in UNDB online.
- 43.4 Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the Letter of Acceptance shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 44. Debriefing by the Employer44.1 On receipt of the Borrower's Notification of Intention to Award referred to in ITB41, an unsuccessful Bidder has three (3) Business Days to make a written request to the Employer for a debriefing. The Employer shall provide a debriefing to all unsuccessful Bidders whose request is received within this deadline.
 - 44.2 Where a request for debriefing is received within the deadline, the Employer shall provide a debriefing within five (5) Business Days, unless the Employer decides, for justifiable reasons, to provide the debriefing outside this timeframe. In that case, the standstill period shall automatically be extended until five (5) Business Days after such debriefing is provided. If more than one debriefing is so delayed, the standstill period shall not end earlier than five (5) Business Days after the last debriefing takes place. The Employer shall promptly inform, by the quickest means available, all Bidders of the extended standstill period.
 - 44.3 Where a request for debriefing is received by the Employer later than the three (3)-Business Day deadline, the Employer should provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fifteen (15) Business Days from the date of publication of Public Notice of Award of contract. Requests for debriefing received outside the three (3)-day deadline shall not lead to extension of the standstill period.
 - 44.4 Debriefings of unsuccessful Bidders may be done in writing or verbally. The Bidder shall bear their own costs of attending such a debriefing meeting.
- 45. Signing of Contract
 45.1 The Employer shall send to the successful Bidder the Letter of Acceptance including the Contract Agreement, and, if specified in the BDS, a request to submit the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form providing additional information on its beneficial ownership. The Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, if so requested, shall

be submitted within eight (8) Business Days of receiving this request.

- 45.2 The successful Bidder shall sign, date and return to the Employer, the Contract Agreement within twenty-eight (28) days of its receipt.
- 46. Performance Security
 46.1 Within twenty-eight (28) days of the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance from the Employer, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC 3.9, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Employer. If the Performance Security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Employer. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Employer's Country, unless the Employer has agreed in writing that a correspondent financial institution is not required.
 - 46.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Employer may award the Contract to the Bidder offering the next Most Advantageous Bid.
- **47. Adjudicator 47.1** The Employer proposes the person named **in the BDS** to be appointed as Adjudicator under the Contract, at an hourly fee specified **in the BDS**, plus reimbursable expenses. If the Bidder disagrees with this Bid, the Bidder should so state in the Bid. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer has not agreed on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator shall be appointed by the Appointing Authority designated in the Special Conditions of Contract at the request of either party.
- 48. Procurement 48.1 The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are as specified in the BDS.
 Complaint

Section II -Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

The following specific data for the Non-Consulting Services to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

ITB Reference	A. General	
ITB 1.1	The reference number of the Request for Bids (RFB) is AIWTD-11013/43/2023	
	The Employer is: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society	
	The name of the RFB is: Appointment of Creative Multimedia Advertising Agency for Content Development and Management of Communication Materials (Audio, Print and Audio-Visual Materials) for the Transport Department and Inland Water Transport Department, Government of Assam	
	The number and identification of lots (contracts)comprising this RFB is: Not Applicable	
ITB 1.2(a)	Electronic –Procurement System	
	The Employer shall use the following electronic-procurement system to manage this Bidding process:	
	www.assamtenders.gov.in	
	The electronic-procurement system shall be used to manage the following aspects of the Bidding process:	
	 i. issuing bidding document, ii. Corrigendum and reply to bidder's query, if any iii. submissions of Bids, iv. opening of Bids 	
ITB 1.3	The Intended Completion Date is: 31 st December 2024	
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Government of India	
	Loan or Financing Agreement amount:US\$88Million	
	The name of the Project is: Assam Inland Water Transport Project	
ITB 4.1	Maximum number of members in the Joint Venture (JV) shall be: JV is not allowed	

ITB 4.5	A list of debarred firms and individuals is available on the Bank's external website: <u>http://www.worldbank.org/debarr.</u>
	B. Contents of Bidding Document
ITB 8.1	For <u>Clarification of Bid purposes</u> only, the Employer's address is:
	Attention: State Project Director
	Address: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society,
	3rd Floor, Directorate of Inland Water Transport, Assam,
	Guwahati - 7, India
	Telephone: +91 361 2462677
	Electronic mail address: dir.iwtds-as@gov.in
	Website: http://assamtenders.gov.in & www.aiwtdsociety.in
	Requests for clarification should be received by the Employer no later than: 25 th February, 2024
	Pre bid meeting: A virtual Prebid meeting of the bidders will be convened via Video Conferencing on 26-Feb-24 at 1100 hrs.
	A maximum of two representatives of each bidder will be allowed to participate on prior approval by the employer. The queries along with the contact details of the representatives (i.e. mail id and phone number) shall be submitted by the bidder on or before 23 rd February, 2024, 1600 hrs.
	C. Preparation of Bids
ITB 11.1	The language of the Bid is: English.
	All correspondence exchange shall be in English language.
	Language for translation of supporting documents and printed literature is English.
ITB 12.1 (i)	 The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its Bid: Implementation Plan; Organisational Structure of the Firm; List of experts with qualification and expertise within the firm List of relevant licensed software in possession of the firm to execute the assignment Production capacity for development of Television Commercials (TVCs) and Radio Clips- Hardware, software, manpower, etc. Code of Conduct for Service Provider's Personnel
	The Bidder shall submit its Code of Conduct that will apply to the Service

	Provider's Personnel (as defined in GCC Sub- Clause 1.1) employed for the execution of Services (defined in GCC Sub- Clause 1.1) at the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are required, to ensure compliance with the Service Provider's Environmental and/or Social, as applicable, obligations under the Contract. The Bidder shall use for this purpose the Code of Conduct form provided in Section IV. No substantial modifications shall be made to this form, except that the Bidder may introduce additional requirements, including as necessary to take into account specific Contract issues/risks.	
ITB 14.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.	
ITB 14.2	Alternative times for completion shall not be permitted.	
ITB 14.3	Alternative technical solutions shall be permitted for the following parts of the Services: NA	
ITB 15.7	The prices quoted by the Bidder shall not be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.	
ITB 16.1	Bid price to be quoted in INR only.	
ITB 18.4	Prequalification has not been undertaken.	
ITB 19.1	The Bid shall be valid until 120 days from the date of submission of Bid.	
ITB 19.3 (a)	Not Applicable	
ITB 20.1	A Bid-Securing Declaration is to be submitted as per the attached format.	
ITB 20.3 (d)	Other types of acceptable securities: None	
ITB 20.9	Deleted	
ITB 21.1	In addition to the original of the Bid, the number of copies is: NA	
ITB 21.3	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of: Power of Attorney on non-judicial stamp paper or Letter of Authorisation with board resolution.	
	D. Online Submission and Opening of Bids	
ITB 23.1	For <u>Bid submission purposes</u> only, the Employer's address is: Web page: <u>www.assamtenders.gov.in</u> ,	
ITB 23.1	The deadline for Bid submission is:	

	Date:11/03/2024
	Time: 14:00 Hours
	Bidders shall submit their Bids electronically.
	The electronic Bid submission procedures shall be: For submission of the bid, the bidder is required to have Digital Signature Certificate (DSC) from one of the authorized Certifying Authoritiesauthorised by Government of India for issuing DSC (Class II). Aspiring bidders who have not obtained the user ID and password for participating in e-procurement in this Project, may obtain the same from the website: <u>www.assamtenders.gov.in</u> . Bids must be submitted online on <u>www.assamtenders.gov.in</u> on or before the deadline for submission of bids, and will be opened online at the specified time and date for opening of bids, as given in ITB 26.1. Any bid or modifications to bid (including discount) received outside e-procurement system will not be considered. If the office happens to be closed on the next working day at the same time. The electronic bidding system would not allow any late submission of bids.
ITB 25.1	Replace ITB 25.1 with the following:
	"25.1. Bidders may modify their bids by using appropriate option for bid modification on the e-procurement portal, before the deadline for submission of bids. For this the bidder need not make any additional payment towards the cost of bid document. For bid modification and consequential re-submission, the bidder is not required to withdraw his bid submitted earlier. The last modified bid submitted by the bidder within the bid submission time shall be considered as the Bid. For this purpose, modification/withdrawal by other means will not be accepted. In online system of bid submission, the modification and consequential re- submission of bids is allowed any number of times. A bidder may withdraw his bid by using appropriate option for bid withdrawal, before the deadline for submission of bids, however, if the bid is withdrawn, re- submission of the bid is allowed."
ITB 25.2	Deleted
ITB 25.3	Deleted
ITB 26.1	Replace ITB 26.1 with the following:
	26.1 The Purchaser shall publicly open all Bids received by the deadline at the date and time specified below , and this could also be viewed by the bidders online. In all cases, original documents submitted as specified in RFB point no. 7 shall be first scrutinized, and Bids that do not comply with the provisions of RFB point no. 7 will be declared non-responsive and will not be opened. The bidder's names, the Bid prices, the total

	 amount of each bid, including any discounts and Alternative Bid, and such other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate will be notified online by the Purchaser at the time of bid opening. In the event of the specified date of bid opening being declared a holiday for the Purchaser, the bids will be opened at the appointed time and location on the next working day. The Bid opening shall take place at: Address: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society, 			
	3rd Floor, Directorate of Inland Water Transport, Assam,			
	Guwahati - 7, India			
	Web page: <u>www.assamtenders.gov.in</u> ,			
	Date:11/03/2024			
	Time: 16:00 Hrs.			
ITB 26.2	Replace ITB 26.2 with the following:			
	The electronic summary of the bid opening will be generated and uploaded online. The Purchaser will also prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed and upload the same for viewing online. Only Bids, alternative bids if permitted in ITB 14.1, and discounts that are opened at Bid opening shall be considered further for evaluation.			
ITB 26.3, 26.4, 26.5, 26.6, 26.7, 26.8, 26.9	Deleted			
	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids			
ITB 33.1	Not Applicable, Bid price shall be in INR only.			
	F. Award of Contract			
ITB 45.1	The successful Bidder <i>shall not</i> submit the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.			
ITB 47	The Adjudicator will be finalized at the time of signing of contract.			
ITB 48.1	The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are detailed in the " <u>Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers</u> (Annex III)." If a Bidder wishes to make a Procurement-related Complaint, the Bidder			

should submit its complaint following these procedures, in writing by email, to:
For the attention: Mr. Gaurav Upadhyay, IPS
Title/position: State Project Director
Employer: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Authority
Email address: dir.iwtds-as@gov.in
In summary, a Procurement-related Complaint may challenge any of the following:

the terms of the Bidding Documents; and
the Employer's decision to award the contract.

Section III - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This section contains the criteria that the Employer shall use to evaluate Bids and qualify Bidders through post-qualification. No other factor methods or criteria shall be used other than specified in this bidding document. The Bidder shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.

Contents

1.	Eval	Evaluation (ITB 35.2(f))				
	1.1	Adequacy of Technical Proposal	36			
	1.2	Multiple Contracts	36			
	1.3	Alternative Times for Completion	37			
	1.4	Alternative Technical Solutions for specified parts of the Services	37			
	1.5	Sustainable procurement	37			
2.	Qual	ification	38			

The Employer shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Section to evaluate Bids. By applying these criteria and methodologies, the Employer shall determine the Most Advantageous Bid. This is the Bid that has been determined to be:

- (a) substantially responsive to the bidding document, and
- (b) the lowest evaluated cost.

The financial bid of each bidders will be evaluated as follows to arrive at the lowest evaluated cost:

The items under Sl. No. 1.01 to 1.12 and 1.47 to 1.54 of the BOQ Sheet (Financial Bid) will be given a weightage of 50 marks out of 100 marks and the remaining items will be given a weightage of 50 marks out of 100 marks. The marking will be allotted as follows:

 i) The lowest financial bid of the bidders for Sl. No. 1.01 to 1.12 and 1.47 to 1.54 of the BOQ Sheet (Financial Bid) is given the maximum marks of 50 and the remaining bidders will be scored on pro-rata basis. The formula for determining the marks of all other financial bid is calculated as following:

Sf = 50 x Fm/F, in which "Sf" is the financial mark, "Fm" is the lowest price, and "F" the price of the bid under consideration.

- ii) The lowest Financial bid of the bidders for remaining item of the BOQ Sheet (Financial Bid) is given the maximum marks of 50 and the remaining bidders will be scored on prorata basis as given in the formula above.
- iii)The bidder scoring the maximum marks [(i) + (ii) above] will be declared the highest responsive bidder and will be awarded the work.

1. Evaluation (ITB 35.2(f))

1.1 Adequacy of Technical Proposal

Evaluation of the Bidder's Technical Proposal will include an assessment of the Bidder's technical capacity to mobilize key equipment and personnel for the contract consistent with its proposal regarding work methods, scheduling, and material sourcing in sufficient detail and fully in accordance with the requirements stipulated in Section VII, Employer's Requirements.

1.2 Multiple Contracts (Not Applicable)

Pursuant to ITB 35.4 of the Instructions to Bidders, if Services are grouped in multiple contracts, evaluation will be as follows:

(a) Award Criteria for Multiple Contracts [ITB 35.4]: Not Applicable

Lots

Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more lots. Bids will be evaluated lot-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, after considering all possible combination of lots. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined lots, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for lot or combination of lots as the case may be.

Packages

Bidders have the option to Bid for any one or more packages and for any one or more lots within a package. Bids will be evaluated package-wise, taking into account discounts offered, if any, for combined packages and/or lots within a package. The contract(s) will be awarded to the Bidder or Bidders offering the lowest evaluated cost to the Employer for combined packages, subject to the selected Bidder(s) meeting the required qualification criteria for combination of packages and or lots as the case may be.

(b) Qualification Criteria for Multiple Contracts: Not Applicable

1.3 Alternative Times for Completion - Not Applicable

1.4 Alternative Technical Solutions for specified parts of the Services- Not Applicable

1.5 Sustainable procurement – Not Applicable

2. Qualification

- I. All Bidders shall include the following information and documents with their Bids:
 - (a) copies of original documents defining the constitution or legal status, place of registration, and principal place of business; written power of attorney of the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder;
 - (b) total monetary value of Services performed for each of the last five years;
 - (c) experience in Services of a similar nature and size for each of the last five years, and details of Services under way or contractually committed; and names and address of clients who may be contacted for further information on those contracts;
 - (d) list of major items of equipment proposed to carry out the Contract;
 - (e) qualifications and experience of key personnel proposed for the Contract;
 - (f) reports on the financial standing of the Bidder, such as profit and loss statements and auditor's reports for the past five years;
 - (g) evidence of adequacy of working capital for this Contract (access to line(s) of credit and availability of other financial resources);
 - (h) authority to the Employer to seek references from the Bidder's bankers;
 - (i) information regarding any litigation, current or during the last five years, in which the Bidder is involved, the parties concerned, and disputed amount;
 - (j) if required by the Employer, Environmental and Social (ES) past performance declaration (see below at the end of this section).
- II. To qualify for award of the Contract, Bidders shall meet the following minimum qualifying criteria:
 - (a) annual volume of Services of at least the amount specified **below**;
 - (b) experience as service provider in the provision of at least two service contracts of a nature and complexity equivalent to the Services over the last 5 years as specified **below;**
 - (c) proposals for the timely acquisition (own, lease, hire, etc.) of the essential equipment listed **in below**;
- (d) Suitably qualified key personnel specified below and other key personnel that the Bidder considers appropriate to perform the Services; and
 - (e) liquid assets and/or credit facilities, net of other contractual commitments and exclusive of any advance payments which may be made under the Contract, of no less than the amount specified **below**.

A consistent history of litigation or arbitration awards against the Bidder or any member of a Joint Venture may result in disqualification.

Joint Ventures	The information needed for Bids submitted by joint ventures is as follows: -NA-		
Annual Volume	The minimum required average annual volume of Services for the successful Bidder in the last five years shall be (till FY 2022-23): INR 2 Crores		
Experience	The experience required to be demonstrated by the Bidder should include as a minimum that he has executed during the last 5 years the following:		
	 The Bidder must be an agency/ entity essentially involved in printing and execution of outdoor & outreach activities (Similar Assignment) for at least the last 5 financial years. The bidder shall have executed at least 2 (two) similar assignments amounting to Rs. 50.00 Lakhs during the last 5 years as on the last date of submission of bid. The bidder must have experience of similar services with an Externally Aided Projects (like World Bank, Asian Development Bank, etc.) in Assam. The bidder should not be blacklisted by Central / State Government / Autonomous Bodies / Government Organizations / PSUs as of date of submission of this bid. The bidder must have a fully functional office in Guwahati, Assam during the last 5 financial years 		
Essential Equipment	The essential equipment to be made available for the Contract by the successful Bidder shall be:		
	 (i) The agency must have in-house tools/facilities for production and development of Software Applications, Web Design, editing of contents in all forms including video in high definitions, research based technical content, HD quality video shooting unit etc. 		
Key Personnel	The Bidders should fulfil the following eligibility conditions for participating in the Tender. The Bidders should enclose documentary evidence for fulfilling the eligibility conditions. It is the sole responsibility of the bidder for the smooth and timely completion of the assigned work.		
	Sr. Designation Qualification & Experience		
	No. Image:		

Qualification Requirements

	position)	Communications, Social Science, Management		
		or Public Administration or related fields from		
		any recognized university/Govt. approved		
		institutions.		
		Ten (10) years of work experience in preparing		
		and implementing strategic Communication and		
		media campaigns.		
2	Event Planner (1	Bachelors or Master's degree in Event		
	position)	Management, Marketing, Public Relations, or a		
		related field.		
		Proven experience of at least 5 years in event		
		planning and execution, with a focus on		
		awareness and outreach campaigns.		
		Strong portfolio demonstrating successful		
		planning and execution of events, preferably in		
		the public or social sector.		
		In-depth knowledge of event logistics,		
		coordination, and promotion strategies.		
		Creative mindset with the ability to		
		conceptualize and implement engaging events.		
		Excellent communication, negotiation, and		
		interpersonal skills.		
		Proficiency in project management software		
		and event planning tools.		
3	Cinematographer,	Graduate in Mass communication or any other		
	Photographer and	relevant subjects from a recognised university.		
	Editor (3 position)	At least 7 years of experience in the field of		
		film/audio production & photography		
4	Outdoor Branding	Bachelors or Master's degree in Marketing,		
	Experts (1	Advertising, or a related field.		
	Positions)	Proven experience of at least 5 years in outdoor		
		branding, advertising, or a similar role.		
		Strong portfolio showcasing successful outdoor		
		branding campaigns and initiatives.		
		In-depth knowledge of outdoor advertising		
		mediums, including billboards, banners, transit		
		advertising, and other relevant platforms.		
		Familiarity with market research and audience		
		analysis to optimize outdoor branding		
		strategies.		
		Proficiency in graphic design software and a		
		keen eye for visual aesthetics.		
T 1				
The Agency may propose additional technical professionals to support				

	the core team as appropriate. The Agency must have/ be able to quickly put together a team of multi-disciplinary professionals to carry out the assignment and furnish high quality outputs reports.The Agency will make its own arrangements for all the activities it has to perform in meeting the scope of services under this assignment. This will include all production, travel and logistics arrangements required for its team for achievement of each activity.
Liquid Assets	The minimum amount of liquid assets and/or credit facilities net of other contractual commitments of the successful Bidder shall be: INR 25 Lakhs
Subcontractors	Subcontractors' experience shall not be taken into account.

Subcontractors' experience and resources *will not be taken* into account in determining the Bidder's compliance with the qualifying criteria, unless otherwise stated in the Qualification Requirements above.

Declaration: Environmental and Social (ES) past performance

The Bidder shall declare, using the form in Section IV, any contract that has been suspended or terminated and/or performance security called by an employer, in the past five years, for reasons of breach of environmental or social (including Sexual Exploitation and Abuse) contractual obligations,. The Employer may use this information to seek further information or clarifications in carrying out its due diligence.

Section IV- Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

Letter of Bid	43
Bidder Information Form	46
Bidder's JV Members Information Form	47
Qualification Information	48
Environmental and Social Performance Declaration	51
Schedule Forms	53
Activity ScheduleError! Bookmar	k not defined.
Method Statement	55
Code of Conduct for Service Provider's Personnel Form	56
Work Plan	60
Others - Time Schedule	61
Form of Bid Security	62
Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)	64
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration	65

Letter of Bid

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE DOCUMENT

The Bidder must prepare this Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and business address.

Note: All italicized text is to help Bidders in preparing this form.

Date of this Bid submission: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] **RFB No.:** [insert number of RFB process] **Alternative No.**:[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

To: [insert complete name of Employer]

- (a) **No reservations:** We have examined and have no reservations to the bidding document, including Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 9;
- (b) **Eligibility**: We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) **Bid-Securing Declaration:** We havenot been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Employer based on execution of a Bid-Securing Declaration or Proposal-Securing Declaration in the Employer's Country in accordance with ITB 4.7;
- (d) **Conformity:** We offer to provide the Non-Consulting Services in conformity with the bidding document of the following: [*insert a brief description of the Non-Consulting Services*];
- (e) **Bid Price:** The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is: [*Insert one of the options below as appropriate*]

Option 1, in case of one lot: Total price is: <u>[insert the total price of the Bid in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies];</u>

Or

Option 2, in case of multiple lots: (a) Total price of each lot [*insert the total price of each lot in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies*]; and (b) Total price of all lots (sum of all lots) [*insert the total price of all lots in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies*];

(f) **Discounts:** The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

- (i) The discounts offered are: [Specify in detail each discount offered.]
- (ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts];
- (g) **Bid Validity Period:**Our Bid shall be valid until *[insert day, month and year in accordance with ITB 19.1]*, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (h) **Performance Security:** If our Bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a Performance Security in accordance with the bidding document;
- (i) One Bid Per Bidder: We are not submitting any other Bid(s) as an individual Bidder, and we are not participating in any other Bid(s) as a Joint Venture member or as a subcontractor, and meet the requirements of ITB 4.3, other than alternative Bids submitted in accordance with ITB 14;
- (j) Suspension and Debarment: We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group or a debarment of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Employer's Country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;
- (k) **State-owned enterprise or institution**: [select the appropriate option and delete the other] [We are not a state-owned enterprise or institution] / [We are a state-owned enterprise or institution but meet the requirements of ITB 4.6];
- (1) **Commissions, gratuities and fees**: We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the Bidding process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

(m)[Delete if not appropriate, or amend to suit] We confirm that we understand the provisions relating to Standstill Period as described in this bidding document and the Procurement Regulations.

- (n) **Binding Contract**: We understand that this Bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your Letter of Acceptance, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed;
- (o) **Not Bound to Accept:** We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated cost Bid, the Most Advantageous Bid or any other Bid that you may receive; and
- (p) **Fraud and Corruption:** We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption.

Name of the Bidder: *[insert complete name of the Bidder]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder: **[*insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid*]

Title of the person signing the Bid: [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]

Date signed [insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

Bidder Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] RFB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative] Page _____ of ____ pages

1. Bidder's Name [insert Bidder's legal name]

2. In case of JV, legal name of each member :[insert legal name of each member in JV]

3. Bidder's actual or intended country of registration: [insert actual or intended country of registration]

4. Bidder's year of registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration]

5. Bidder's Address in country of registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in country of registration]

6. Bidder's Authorized Representative Information

Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]

Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]

Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]

Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]

7. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]

□ Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.

□ In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.

- □ In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.6 documents establishing:
 - Legal and financial autonomy
 - Operation under commercial law
 - Establishing that the Bidder is not under the supervision of the agency of the Employer

8. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.[*If required under BDS ITB 45.1, the successful Bidder shall provide additional information on beneficial ownership, using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.*]

Bidder's JV Members Information Form (Not Applicable)

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]]. Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid submission] RFB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Page _____ of ____ pages

1.	Bidder's Name: [insert Bidder's legal name]
2.	Bidder's JV Member's name: [insert JV's Member legal name]
3.	Bidder's JV Member's country of registration: [insert JV's Member country of registration]
4.	Bidder's JV Member's year of registration: [insert JV's Member year of registration]
5.	Bidder's JV Member's legal address in country of registration: [insert JV's Member legal address in country of registration]
6.	Bidder's JV Member's authorized representative information
Na	me: [insert name of JV's Member authorized representative]
Ad	dress: [insert address of JV's Member authorized representative]
Tel	ephone/Fax numbers: [insert telephone/fax numbers of JV's Member authorized representative]
Em	ail Address: [insert email address of JV's Member authorized representative]
7.	Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]
	Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.4.
	In case of a state-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and that they are not under the supervision of the Employer, in accordance with ITB 4.6.
8. I	ncluded are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.[If required under BDS ITB 45.1, the successful Bidder shall provide additional information on beneficial ownership for each JV member using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form.]

Qualification Information

Bidders orIndividualPlace of regisMembers ofPrincipal place		1.1	Constitution or legal status of Bidder: [<i>attach copy</i>] Place of registration: [<i>insert</i>] Principal place of business: [<i>insert</i>] Power of attorney of signatory of Bid: [<i>attach</i>]
		1.2	Total annual volume of Services performed in five years, in the internationally traded currency specified in the BDS : [<i>insert</i>]
		1.3	Services performed as prime Service Provider on the provision of Services of a similar nature and volume over the last five years. The values should be indicated in the same currency used for Item 1.2 above. Also list details of Services under way or committed, including expected completion date.

Project name and country	Name of employer and contact person	Type of Services provided and year of	Value of contract
		completion	
(a)			
(b)			

1.4 Major items of Service Provider's Equipment proposed for carrying out the Services. List all information requested below.

Item of equipment	Description, make, and age (years)	Condition (new, good, poor) and number available	Owned, leased (from whom?), or to be purchased (from whom?)
(a)			,,, _,, _
(b)			

1.5 Qualifications and experience of key personnel proposed for administration and execution of the Contract. Attach biographical data. Refer to GCC Clause 4.1.

Position	Name	Years of experience	Years of experience
		(general)	in proposed
			position
(a)			

(b)

1.6 Proposed subcontracts and firms involved. Refer to GCC Clause 3.5.

Sections of the Services	Value of subcontract	Subcontractor (name and address)	Experience in providing similar Services
(a)			
(b)			

- 1.7 Financial reports for the last five years: balance sheets, profit and loss statements, auditors' reports, etc. List below and attach copies.
- 1.8 Evidence of access to financial resources to meet the qualification requirements: cash in hand, lines of credit, etc. List below and attach copies of support documents. We certify/confirm that we comply with eligibility requirements as per ITB 4.
- 1.9 Name, address, and telephone, telex, and facsimile numbers of banks that may provide references if contacted by the Employer.
- 1.10 Information regarding any litigation, current or within the last five years, in which the Bidder is or has been involved.

Other party(ies)	Cause of dispute	Details of litigation award	Amount involved
(a)			
(b)			

- 1.11 Statement of compliance with the requirements of ITB 4.2.
- 1.12 Proposed Program (service work method and schedule). Descriptions, drawings, and charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the bidding document.
- **2. Joint Ventures** 2.1 The information listed in 1.1 1.11 above shall be provided for each member of the joint venture.
 - 2.2 The information in 1.12 above shall be provided for the joint venture.
 - 2.3 Attach the power of attorney of the signatory(ies) of the Bid authorizing signature of the Bid on behalf of the joint venture.
 - 2.4 Attach the Agreement among all members of the joint venture

(and which is legally binding on all members), which shows that

- (a) all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
- (b) one of the members will be nominated as being in charge, authorized to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all members of the joint venture; and
- (c) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the member in charge.
- **3. Additional** 3.1 Bidders should provide any additional information required in the BDS.

Environmental and Social Performance Declaration

[Note to the Employer: Include this form if applicable in accordance with Section III]

[The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and each member of a Joint Venture]

Bidder's Name: [insert full name] Date: [insert day, month, year] Joint Venture Member's Name: [insert full name] RFB No. and title: [insert RFB number and title] Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

Environmental and Social Performance Declaration

- □ No suspension or termination of contract: An employer has not suspended or terminated a contract and/or called the performance security for a contract for reasons related to Environmental or Social (ES) performance, in the past five years.
- □ Declaration of suspension or termination of contract: The following contract(s) has/have been suspended or terminated and/or Performance Security called by an employer(s) for reasons related to Environmental or Social (ES) performance, in the past five years. Details are described below:

Year	Suspended or terminated portion of contract	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (current value, currency, exchange rate and US\$ equivalent)
[insert year]		Contract Identification: <i>[indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification]</i>	[insert amount]
		Name of Employer: [insert full name]	
		Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]	
		Reason(s) for suspension or termination: [indicate main reason(s) e.g. gender-based violence; sexual exploitation or sexual abuse breaches]	
-		Contract Identification: <i>[indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification]</i>	[insert amount]
		Name of Employer: [insert full name]	
		Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]	
		Reason(s) for suspension or termination: [indicate main reason(s)]	
		[list all applicable contracts]	

Year	Contract Identification	Total Contract Amount (current value, currency, exchange rate and US\$ equivalent)
[insert year]	Contract Identification: [indicate complete contract name/ number, and any other identification]	[insert amount]
	Name of Employer: [insert full name]	
	Address of Employer: [insert street/city/country]	
	Reason(s) for calling of performance security: [indicate main reason(s) e.g. gender-based violence; sexual exploitation, or sexual abuse breaches]	

Schedule Forms

[The Bidder shall fill in these Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the Activity Schedules shall coincide with the List of Non-Consulting Services specified in the Employer's Requirements.]

Price Schedule/BOQ

(To be filled the BOQ format in excel format and needs to be uploaded under the BOQ folder)

Method Statement

[Note to the Employer: Include the following if applicable in accordance with the Bid Data Sheet 12.1 (i); modify as appropriate]

The Bidder shall submit comprehensive and concise Environmental and Social Management Strategies and Implementation Plans (ES-MSIP) as required by ITB 12.1 (i) of the Bid Data Sheet. These strategies and plans shall describe in detail the actions, materials, equipment, management processes etc. that will be implemented by the Service Provider, and its Subcontractors.

In developing these strategies and plans, the Bidder shall have regard to the ES provisions of the contract including those as may be more fully described in the Employer's Requirements in Section VII.]

Code of Conduct for Service Provider's Personnel Form (ES)

Note to the Employer:

The following minimum requirements shall not be modified. The Employer may add additional requirements to address identified issues, informed by relevant environmental and social assessment.

Delete this Box prior to issuance of the bidding documents.

Note to the Bidder:

The minimum content of the Code of Conduct form as set out by the Employer shall not be substantially modified. However, the Bidder may add requirements as appropriate, including to take into account Contract-specific issues/risks.

The Bidder shall initial and submit the Code of Conduct form as part of its bid.

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SERVICE PROVIDER'S PERSONNEL

We are the Service Provider, [*enter name of Service Provider*]. We have signed a contract with [*enter name of Employer*] for [*enter description of the Services*]. The Services will be carried out at [*enter the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are required, as applicable*]. Our contract requires us to implement measures to address *environmental and social risks* [*Note to Employer: depending on the nature of the contract and assessed risks, this may be replaced with social risks*], related to the Services.

This Code of Conduct is part of our measures to deal with environmental and social risks [Note to **Employer**: depending on the nature of the contract and assessed risks, this may be replaced with social risks] related to the Services.

All personnel that we utilize in the execution of the Services, including the staff, labor and other employees of us and each Subcontractor, and any other personnel assisting us in the execution of the Services, are referred to as Service Provider's Personnel.

This Code of Conduct identifies the behavior that we require from the Service Provider's Personnel employed for the execution of the Services at the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are provided.

Our workplace is an environment where unsafe, offensive, abusive or violent behavior will not be tolerated and where all persons should feel comfortable raising issues or concerns without fear of retaliation.

REQUIRED CONDUCT

Service Provider's Personnel employed for the execution of the Services at the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are provided shall:

- 1. carry out his/her duties competently and diligently;
- 2. comply with this Code of Conduct and all applicable laws, regulations and other requirements, including requirements to protect the health, safety and well-being of other Service Provider's Personnel and any other person;
- 3. maintain a safe working environment including by:
 - a. ensuring that workplaces, machinery, equipment and processes under each person's control are safe and without risk to health;
 - b. wearing required personal protective equipment;
 - c. using appropriate measures relating to chemical, physical and biological substances and agents; and
 - d. following applicable emergency operating procedures.
- 4. report work situations that he/she believes are not safe or healthy and remove himself/herself from a work situation which he/she reasonably believes presents an imminent and serious danger to his/her life or health;
- 5. treat other people with respect, and not discriminate against specific groups such as women, people with disabilities, migrant workers or children;
- 6. not engage in any form of sexual harassment including unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature with other Service Provider's or Employer's Personnel;
- 7. not engage in Sexual Exploitation, which means any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another;
- 8. not engage in in Sexual Abuse, which means the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions;
- 9. not engage in any form of sexual activity with individuals under the age of 18, except in case of pre-existing marriage;
- 10. complete relevant training courses that will be provided related to the environmental and social aspects of the Contract, including on health and safety matters, and Sexual Exploitation and Abuse, and Sexual Harassment (SH);
- 11. report violations of this Code of Conduct; and
- 12. not retaliate against any person who reports violations of this Code of Conduct, whether to us or the Employer, or who makes use of applicable grievance mechanism for Service Provider's Personnel or the project's Grievance Redress Mechanism.

RAISING CONCERNS

If any person observes behavior that he/she believes may represent a violation of this Code of Conduct, or that otherwise concerns him/her, he/she should raise the issue promptly. This can be done in either of the following ways:

- 1. Contact [*enter name of the individual, with relevant experience, designated by the Service provider to handle these matters*] in writing at this address [] or by telephone at [] or in person at []; or
- 2. Call [] to reach the Service Provider's hotline (*if any*) and leave a message.

The person's identity will be kept confidential, unless reporting of allegations is mandated by the country law. Anonymous complaints or allegations may also be submitted and will be given all due and appropriate consideration. We take seriously all reports of possible misconduct and will investigate and take appropriate action. We will provide warm referrals to service providers that may help support the person who experienced the alleged incident, as appropriate.

There will be no retaliation against any person who raises a concern in good faith about any behavior prohibited by this Code of Conduct. Such retaliation would be a violation of this Code of Conduct.

CONSEQUENCES OF VIOLATING THE CODE OF CONDUCT

Any violation of this Code of Conduct by the Service Provider's Personnel may result in serious consequences, up to and including termination and possible referral to legal authorities.

FOR SERVICE PROVIDER'S PERSONNEL:

I have received a copy of this Code of Conduct written in a language that I comprehend. I understand that if I have any questions about this Code of Conduct, I can contact [*enter name of Service Provider's contact person(s) with relevant experience*] requesting an explanation.

Name of Service Provider's Personnel: [insert name]

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Service Provider:

Signature: _____

Date: (day month year): _____

ATTACHMENT 1: Behaviors constituting SEA and behaviors constituting SH

ATTACHMENT 1 TO THE CODE OF CONDUCT FORM

BEHAVIORS CONSTITUTING SEXUAL EXPLOITATION AND ABUSE (SEA) AND BEHAVIORS CONSTITUTING SEXUAL HARASSMENT (SH)

The following non-exhaustive list is intended to illustrate types of prohibited behaviors.

(1) **Examples of sexual exploitation and abuse** include, but are not limited to:

- A Service Provider's Personnel tells a member of the community that he/she can get them jobs related to the work site (e.g. cooking and cleaning) in exchange for sex.
- A Service Provider's Personnel that is connecting electricity input to households says that he can connect women headed households to the grid in exchange for sex.
- A Service Provider's Personnel rapes, or otherwise sexually assaults a member of the community.
- A Service Provider's Personnel denies a person access to the locations where the Services are executed unless he/she performs a sexual favor.
- A Service Provider's Personnel tells a person applying for employment under the Contract that he/she will only hire him/her if he/she has sex with him/her.

(2) Examples of sexual harassment in a work context

- A Service Provider's Personnel comment on the appearance of another Service Provider's Personnel (either positive or negative) and sexual desirability.
- When a Service Provider's Personnel complains about comments made by another Service Provider's Personnel on his/her appearance, the other Service Provider's Personnel comment that he/she is "asking for it" because of how he/she dresses.
- Unwelcome touching of a Service Provider's Personnel or Employer's Personnel by another Service Provider's Personnel.
- A Service Provider's Personnel tells another Service Provider's Personnel that he/she will get him/her a salary raise, or promotion if he/she sends him/her naked photographs of himself/herself.

Work Plan

Others - Time Schedule

(to be used by Bidder when alternative Time for Completion is invited in ITB 14.2)

Not Applicable

Form of Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

[The bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [Employer to insert its name and address]

RFB No.: [Employer to insert reference number for the Request for Bids]

Alternative No.: [Insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Date:[Insert date of issue]

BID GUARANTEE No.:[Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that _____ [insert name of the Bidder, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture (whether legally constituted or prospective) or the names of all members thereof] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has submitted or will submit to the Beneficiary its Bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for the execution of ______ under Request for Bids No. ______ ("the RFB").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of ______(____) upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand, supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that either the Applicant:

- (a) has withdrawn its Bid prior to the Bid validity expiry date set forth in the Bidder's Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Applicant; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity or any extension thereto provided by the Applicant, (i) has failed to sign the contract agreement, or (ii) has failed to furnish the performance security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's bidding document.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Applicant is the successful Bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the Contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such Contract agreement; or (b) if the Applicant is not the

successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Applicant of the results of the Bidding process; or (ii)twenty-eight days after the expiry date of the Bid validity.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758.

[Signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)

[The Surety shall fill in this Bid Bond Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

BOND NO.

BY THIS BOND [name of Bidder] as Principal (hereinafter called "the Principal"), and [name, legal title, and address of surety], authorized to transact business in [name of country of Employer], as Surety (hereinafter called "the Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto [name of Employer] as Obligee (hereinafter called "the Employer") in the sum of [amount of Bond]¹[amount in words], for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we, the said Principal and Surety, bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS the Principal has submitted or will submit a written Bid to the Employer dated the _____ day of ______, 20___, for the supply of *[name of Contract]* (hereinafter called the "Bid").

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Principal:

- (a) withdraws its Bid prior to the Bid validity expiry date set forth in the Principal's Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Principal; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Employer prior to the expiry date of the Bid validityor any extension thereto provided by the Principal; (i) failed to execute the Contract agreement; or (ii) has failed to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Employer's bidding document.

then the Surety undertakes to immediately pay to the Employer up to the above amount upon receipt of the Employer's first written demand, without the Employer having to substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Employer shall state that the demand arises from the occurrence of any of the above events, specifying which event(s) has occurred.

The Surety hereby agrees that its obligation will remain in full force and effect up to and including the date 28 days after the date of expiry of the Bid validity set forth in the Principal's Letter of Bid or any extension thereto provided by the Principal.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have caused these presents to be executed in their respective names this _____ day of _____ 20__.

Principal:

Surety: _____

Corporate Seal (where appropriate)

(Signature) (Printed name and title) (Signature) (Printed name and title)

¹ The amount of the Bond shall be denominated in the currency of the Employer's Country or the equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [date (as day, month and year)] RFB No.: [number of Bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [complete name of Employer]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, Bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for Bidding or submitting proposals in any contract with the Employer for the period of time of *[number of months or years]* starting on *[date]*, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the Bid conditions, because we:

- (a) have withdrawn our Bidprior to the expiry date of the Bid validity specified in the Letter of Bidor any extended date provided by us; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Employer prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity in the Letter of Bid or any extended date provided by us, (i) fail to sign the Contract agreement; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, if required, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiry date of the Bid validity.

Name of the Bidder*_____

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder**_____

Title of the person signing the Bid_____

Signature of the person named above_____

Date signed ______, ____

*: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder attached to the Bid

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members to the Joint Venture that submits the Bid.]

Section V - Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.8, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this Bidding process:

Under ITB 4.8 (a) [insert a list of the countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction or state "none"]

Under ITB 4.8 (b) *[insert a list of the countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction or state "none"]*

Section VI - Fraud and Corruption

(Section VI shall not be modified)

1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - v. "obstructive practice" is:
 - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - (b) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.

- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring mis-procurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;¹(ii) to be a nominated² sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect³ all accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

¹ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated subcontractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

² A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

³ Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

Part II – Employer's Requirement

Section VII– Activity Schedule

ACTIVITY SCHEDULE FOR HIRING OF IMPLEMENTATION AGENCY FOR PRINTING AND EXECUTION OF OUTDOOR & OUTREACH ACTIVITIES

1. BACKGROUND:

- 1.1 The Government of Assam (GoA) plans to transform the quality of Inland Water Transport services and integrate high-quality passenger and vehicle ferry services into the state's wider transport network systems.
- 1.2 The Government of Assam (GoA) with support from the World Bank has taken up the Assam Inland Water Transport (AIWT) project to improve the quality of inland water transport services and integrate high quality passenger and vehicle ferry services in the Brahmaputra and Barak river, ensuring a safe, sustainable and reliable mode for the myriads of commuters across the state. To modernize IWT sector, the World Bank is financing/assisting the GoA through a phase- wise project, which includes up gradation of ferry Infrastructure, Fleet Modernization, institutional capacity development etc.
- 1.3 A society in the name and style of 'Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society' has been formed by GoA under the Transport Department, to support implementation of the WB Project. In an attempt to weave sustainability into the state's climate agenda, the project will not only promote the use of Inland Waterways as an eco-friendly, cost-effective, and convenient mode of transport for citizens but also drive regional & economic development for Assam and its neighboring states.

1.4 The Project Development Objectives (PDO) of AIWT Project is:

- A) To improve passenger ferry infrastructure and services in Assam.
- B) To strengthen the institutional capacity and framework of DIWT, Assam.

1.5 Project Component 1- Institutional, regulatory and safety strengthening

a) Technical Assistance: (i) Carrying out technical assessments/studies to prepare an integrated state-wide inland water transport (IWT) strategy and investment plan, to mainstream inland water transport and promote multi-modal integration and last mile connectivity; (ii) carrying out environmental and social impact assessments in relation to inland water transport investments financed under the Project; (iii) carrying out studies on weaknesses, institutional requirements and business plans for the IWT sector, to prepare institutional reforms including basic legislation for the strengthening of Assam Inland Water Transport Regulatory Authority ("AIWTRA") to develop and enforce safety, environmental and economic regulations for the IWT sector; (iv) unbundling

shipping/ferry and terminal operations in Assam by establishing and operationalizing the Assam Inland Waterways Company Limited (AIWCL), developing business plans therefor, and providing technical assistance/guidance during the initial years of operations; and (v) undertaking assessment on, and eventually strengthening, the institutional capacity of the Directorate of Inland Water Transport Assam ("DIWTA") including establishing a new hydrography unit, carrying out job-mapping exercises and developing sector competencies (training and re-skilling).

b) Safety Management: (i) Assessing, procuring and deploying navigations aids in the Brahmaputra and Barak rivers to allow 24-hours/night navigation services in the most trafficked routes/crossing points; and (ii) establishing a search and rescue organization, piloting an emergency response system (including developing policies and procedures, procuring equipment and setting up/supporting management and operation teams), and improving existing systems for emergency preparedness for natural disasters and climate change.

1.6 Project Component 2- Fleet safety improvements and modernization

- a) "Jibondinga" incentive scheme: Implementing the "Jibondinga" incentive scheme retrofitting of existing vessels and/or new vessel acquisition by private boat/ferry operators through the provision of Matching Grants.
- b) Procurement of New Vessels and Retrofitting of Existing Public Vessels: (i) Procuring approximately twenty (20) passenger ferries for ASC, with capability for carrying motorcycles and cargo, as well as providing longer haul services; (ii) retrofitting existing vessels operated by DWITA and/or ASC; and (iii) repurposing old public vessels for the provision of alternative (non-transport) critical public services (e.g. mobile clinics, schools, libraries, etc.).

1.7 Project Component 3- Improvement in Terminal Infrastructures.

- a) Provision of Priority Terminals and Repair Facilities: Designing and constructing approximately three (3) priority mid- to large-size terminals and repair facilities in congested river crossings, as per standard modular designs for scalable infrastructure adaptable to rural and urban areas and following the "working with nature" approach.
- b) Provision of Smaller Terminals: Designing and constructing at least four (4) small and mainly rural terminals, as per standard designs for modular and scalable infrastructure adaptable to rural and urban areas.
- c) Component 3 will provide standard designs for modular and scalable infrastructure that can be adapted for other urban and rural ferry terminals. It also includes ancillary infrastructure such as road access, terminal buildings, and other amenities for the differently abled, women, children, old, and infirm.

1.8 Project Component 4- Project Management Support

- a) This component will support implementation of the above three components and provide for costs on project preparation, implementation, coordination, and monitoring and evaluation (M&E). An important element of the component would support capacity augmentation and policy support on climate mitigation and adaptation through consultancies, knowledge events, and staff training, and so on.
- b) The activities supported under the component specifically include the following: Providing support for Project implementation, coordination, monitoring and evaluation, through: (i) establishing and ensuring the operability of AIWTDS, including the provision of training, staffing, office modernization and equipment; (ii) ensuring the operability of the AIWTRA, including the provision of training, staffing, office and equipment; (iii) providing technical assistance and management support, including hiring the services of the General Consultant and the Independent Verification Agency; (iv) carrying out Project audits; and (v) setting up monitoring and evaluation systems.

1.9 Project Beneficiaries

The four main beneficiary groups of the project are the users of ferry services throughout the state of Assam, through better and safer services; private vessel owners through fleet modernization and upgrading of the existing fleet to better safety and service standards for operations under a strengthened regulatory regime; government employees in the institutions of the sector who will be trained to fulfill more effective and focused roles in the new institutions in industry; and the citizens of Assam who will benefit from the more effective public governance of the sector.

2. COMMUNICATION CONTEXT

- 2.1. The Inland Water Transport (AIWT) systems of Assam has the potential to be a major mode of transportation in the state, but it is currently underutilized. There are a number of reasons for this, including lack of awareness on the economic, social and environmental benefits of Inland Water Transportation systems, limited information dissemination on the state of the art facilities, technological and infrastructural interventions envisioned for Assam, Inland Waterways under the AIWT project, and competition from other modes of transportation like roadways, railways and airways.
- 2.2. Communications Outreach will be an integral component in achieving the desired outcomes of the AIWT project. It will help increasing awareness among citizens on the modernized IWT sector of the state, highlighting the economic and social benefits ensured by the IWT sector; authentic and transparent information dissemination on project achievements, goals and timelines; encouraging behavioral change of passenger and crews

ensuring compliance and regulation of safe navigating standards as determined by IWT authorities.

2.3. The Communications Outreach interventions of the AIWT will be tailored in context to the specific needs of the target audience. By implementing effective communications outreach, AIWT can increase awareness of its benefits and attract more users.

3. CITIZEN ENGAGEMENT

- 3.1. CE for the AIWTP includes stakeholder/community consultations, a multilevel GRM, and beneficiary survey on draft designs for the terminals to be constructed/upgraded (Component 3), including activities listed under other components. Citizen engagement (CE) has been effectively incorporated throughout the project's preparation stage via. Stakeholder mapping, analysis, and detailed consultations with relevant stakeholders and beneficiaries. Their valuable input has been integrated into diverse assessments and strategies. CE will continue to be a cornerstone throughout the project implementation phase. On February 7, 2019, a public consultation was organized to discuss the draft RPF-cum- IPDF at Majuli (Jorhat division) with the affected community and stakeholders. A workshop was organized to discuss the draft IPDP-cum-RAP in Guwahati (Guwahati division) on June 7, 2019. Various methods of CE including citizens' charter and user satisfaction survey has also been carried out to improve the development results and reduce community grievances during the implementation stage. A Stakeholder Engagement Plan has been prepared to ensure that effective consultations and community feedback are continued throughout the project cycle.
- 3.2. These efforts will be complemented by extensive communication outreach activities and effective awareness on grievance redress mechanism. Sustained engagement can bring about change in behavioral pattern of the targeted audience. Specific Citizen Engagement activities has to be designed and executed in all the 3 targeted project divisions (Guwahati, Jorhat & Silchar).

4. OBJECTIVES OF THE ASSIGNMENT

- 4.1. **Brand Visibility and Recognition:** The consultancy should aim to increase the visibility of the client's brand or message through strategic outdoor branding. This involves creating utilizing effective printing techniques to ensure the brand stands out in the targeted locations.
- 4.2. Effective Outreach Activities: Develop and implement outreach activities that engage the target audience and effectively convey the intended message. This may include events, promotions, and other on-the-ground activities to create a direct connection with the audience.

- 4.3. **Consistent Brand Image**: Ensure consistency in the branding elements across various printed materials and outreach activities. This consistency helps in building a strong and recognizable brand image.
- 4.4. **Strategic Placement**: Identify and utilize strategic locations for outdoor branding, maximizing the exposure to the target audience. This involves understanding the demographics and behavior of the audience to optimize the impact of outdoor advertising.
- 4.5. **Quality Printing**: Provide high-quality printing services to ensure that all materials, including banners, posters, brochures, and other promotional items, are produced with excellence. This contributes to the overall professionalism and credibility of the brand.
- 4.6. **Measurable Impact**: Implement strategies that allow for the measurement of the impact of outreach activities and outdoor branding efforts. This could involve tracking metrics such as audience reach, engagement, and brand recall.
- 4.7. **Cost-Effective & Environment Friendly Solutions**: Optimize the use of resources to ensure cost-effectiveness in the printing and implementation processes. This may involve negotiating favorable rates with suppliers and utilizing efficient production methods. Ensure utilization of Environment friendly solutions wherever possible.
- 4.8. Adaptability and Innovation: Stay abreast of industry trends and technological advancements to bring innovative and adaptable solutions. This ensures that the branding efforts remain fresh, relevant, and aligned with the evolving needs of the target audience.
- 4.9. **Compliance and Ethical Practices**: Ensure that all outdoor branding activities comply with local regulations and ethical standards. This includes obtaining necessary permits for signage and adhering to environmental and community guidelines.

5. SCOPE OF WORK

Broadly the scope of services of the Agency will include the following deliverables:

- (i) The Agency will be responsible for printing and supply of various IEC collaterals and material like Leaflets/Pamphlets, Brochures for public awareness on IWT Safety Guidelines; Best practices to promote social wellbeing, gender inclusivity, environmental sustainability of inland waterways; Grievance Redressal Mechanism and other project related information on interventions and services provided under AIWT project like E – Ticketing, Riverine Terminals, amongst others.
- (ii) The Agency will be responsible to printing, fabrication and installation of Outdoor promotional and onsite public awareness collaterals like – permanent hoardings, Signage, Posters, rental Hoardings, etc. to create mass awareness about the project and its various interventions.
- (iii) The Agency shall discuss in details with AIWTDS, prior to printing of the Outdoor Promotional collaterals and installation of the same at the designated sites like Vessels, Terminals, Ghats, and other locations.
- (iv) Conduct various Outreach Activities to facilitate audience engagement and direct communication. This shall include-Influencer Engagement/Celebrity Appearances, Road

Cross Gates, Space Branding including Pavilions, Stalls, Events and Programs, 2D/ 3D acrylic/ plywood cut-outs and installations in Assamese, Bengali and English.

- (v) Videography and Photo documentation of events and activities.
- (vi) Venue booking and arrangements for events and workshops as per requirement of the Client.
- (vii) Comprehensive event Infrastructure arrangements including but not limited to hangars, seating arrangements, sanitary arrangements (bio-toilets), Air-conditioning arrangements, Dice/stage arrangements, Lightings, sound arrangements and allied activities.
- (viii) Creative, thematic and/or cultural events as per the requirement of Client.
- (ix) Conceptualize, design and execute various mid media programs like street plays, LED Van road shows, Media exposure visits, Influencer Meet, etc. and support various capacity building activities like workshops, trainings, etc.
- (x) Conduct press conferences as per requirement of the Client.

6. ETHICAL ISSUES AND GUIDELINES

- a) The cultural sensitivities, religion, language sensitivities, gender issues etc. should be kept in mind while implementation of the awareness and outreach activities.
- b) The outreach activities designed should keep in mind the accessibility of the disabled section of the society (Physical, learning, digital, etc.).
- c) All IEC interventions should be guided and supported by evidence, by triangulating latest communication research data and evaluation studies.
- d) Ensure a more responsive and decentralized approach, the target populations should be involved through the implementation process.
- e) Supporting the networking and convergence with other line departments and key stakeholders will be another key guideline to be followed in implementation of the communication strategy and outreach plan.

7. ENGAGEMENT PERIOD

The tentative period of the consultancy shall be **till 31st December, 2024** from the effective date of the contract. The Client will monitor the performance of the agency on regular basis. The Contract will be renewed basis satisfactory performance offered by the Agency and on mutual consent of the Client and the Agency.

8. REPORTS REQUIREMENT

a) The agency shall submit work completion reports with impact analysis of the activities undertaken Monthly, Quarterly and Annually. The Client will give comments/feedback on the reports submitted and the agency shall accordingly plan the next action plan. Reports are to be furnished in hard copies along with soft copies in PDF as well as in MS Office applications by 5th of every month.

- b) Agency will be required to make a power-point-presentation, indicating summary of activities, recommendations, implementation plan, constraints, etc. after submission of each report at mutually agreed time & date(s).
- c) All soft and hard copies of documents, reports, tools and materials developed and submitted by the agency is the property of Client and the Agency do not have any rights to copy, retain, reproduce, use the documents, reports, tools and materials without express written approval of Client. The agency has to, not later than upon termination/foreclosure or expiration of the contract, deliver all soft (original form) and hard copies to Client, together with a detailed inventory thereof and the same will be approved by the Client.

Sr. No.	Designation	Qualification & Experience	Role
1	Team Leader (1	Master's degree/Graduate in	Responsible for leading the
	position)	Journalism, Mass Communications,	implementation of the
		Social Science, Management or Public	Communication strategy
		Administration or related fields from	and outreach plan,
		any recognized university/Govt.	Stakeholder Capacity
		approved institutions.	Building, and relative
		Ten (10) years of work experience in	Implementation
		preparing and implementing strategic	arrangements.
		Communication and media campaigns.	Responsible for overall
			coordination and delivery of
			work
2	Event Planner	Bachelor's or Master's degree in Event	Responsible for the
	(1 position)	Management, Marketing, Public	Implement of awareness
		Relations, or a related field.	and outreach activities to
		Proven experience of at least 5 years in	maximize attendance and
		event planning and execution, with a	engagement.
		focus on awareness and outreach	Oversee the logistical
		campaigns.	aspects of events, including
		Strong portfolio demonstrating	setup, breakdown, and
		successful planning and execution of	coordination of on-site
		events, preferably in the public or social	activities.
		sector.	Plan and coordinate event
		In-depth knowledge of event logistics,	programs, including
		coordination, and promotion strategies.	speakers, presentations, and

9. CORE TEAM QUALIFICATION & EXPERIENCE

Sr. No.	Designation	Qualification & Experience	Role
		Creative mindset with the ability to conceptualize and implement engaging events. Excellent communication, negotiation, and interpersonal skills. Proficiency in project management software and event planning tools.	interactive sessions Prepare route plan for various outreach activities Budget management, post- event analysis, audience engagement.
3	Cinematographer, Photographer and Editor (3 position)	Graduate in Mass communication or any other relevant subjects from a recognised university. At least 7 years of experience in in the field of film/audio production & photography	Responsible for audio & visual, planning, shooting, editing and production and photo documentation. Overall conceptualising, visualising, developing, and delivering audio & visuals requirement of the assignment. Visit fields for photo & video documentation.
4	Outdoor Branding Experts (1 Positions)	 Bachelor's or Master's degree in Marketing, Advertising, or a related field. Proven experience of at least 5 years in outdoor branding, advertising, or a similar role. Strong portfolio showcasing successful outdoor branding campaigns and initiatives. In-depth knowledge of outdoor advertising mediums, including billboards, banners, transit advertising, and other relevant platforms. Familiarity with market research and audience analysis to optimize outdoor branding strategies. Proficiency in graphic design software and a keen eye for visual aesthetics. 	1 1

10. SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE CLIENT

The Client would provide the agency the following:

- a) Communication Strategy & Outreach Plan and other relevant documents,
- b) Access to relevant available data that is required to fulfil the tasks outlined in the ToR.
- c) Ensuring, where appropriate cooperation of concerned line departments/agencies for smooth conduct of the assignment.

11. INDICATIVE REQUIREMENT OF IEC MATERIAL

The indicative requirements of various awareness and outreach activities are given below as the actual type and number of various activities may be modified during the implementation as per requirements and suggestion proposed by the Agency and as accepted by Client.

Sl. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
1	LEDVanRoadshow(30 days campaign which will run parallely in all the 3 districts)LED van will roam around in the district from one village to another and halt in crowded places and locations.TheLED will display videos Each van will be accompanied by one usher who will distribute leaflets, make announcements throughCover all the nearby villages targetingmic Ghats, educational institutes, market places, panchayat offices, residential areas, etc.	Jorhat- 1 LED Van Kamrup (Guwahati & North Guwahati)- 1 LED Vans	3	30	 407 truck or a similar model with full innovative static branding on 4 sides and LED wall on 1 side with sound system. One supervisor is to be deployed for leaflet distribution. The Vans should have commercial advertising rights. LED size – 8ft x 12 ft, 7 feet x 5 feet LED model – P6 All trucks should be GPS enabled for live tracking and shall also be equipped with a high-quality sound system, 15 KVAs genset, and high speed internet connectivity. The vans shall also be equipped for the live telecast – Dish, USB, and internal storage. Live streaming or Broadcasting of the content should be available so that approved content by the authority can be displayed to the audience. Hydraulic lift to raise the screen height to a minimum of 8ft from the ground for

Sl. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
					maximum visibility.
2	Hoardings permanent installation covering all 5 terminals, 34 operational ghats under AIWTP and 89 ghats across Assam to share information About: AIWTP AIWCL Jibondinga	Jorhat Silchar Guwahati	168	Perm anent install ation	 Hoarding size: 20ft x 10ft Frame of the hoarding should be made out of 50 mm x 50 mm x 6 mm iron angle, joint should be properly welded. Post as per requirement shall be erected with MC 150 size channel supported with stay post of 50 mm x 50 mm x 6 mm iron angle including necessary nuts and bolts. The post should be embedded in underground cement concrete block of M: 20 (1 : 1, 5 : 3). Minimum size of block is 60 mm x 60 mm x 1500 mm, stay post should be embedded in underground cement concrete block of M : 20 (1 : 1, 5 : 3). Minimum size of block is 450 mm x 450 mm x 750 mm. All iron work to be painted with two coats of anticorrosive ready mixed paint. Finishing coat of the paint to be done as per direction of the client including excavation for foundation pit and refilling and removal of surplus soil after completion of works
	Hoarding on rental AIWT	Jorhat	10		Between 800 to 1500 sq.ft
3	Project	Silchar	10	60	Location should be in Arterial roads to cover
	Hoardings will be placed per	Guwahati			maximum visibility

SI. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
	division in town/city and nearby villages to the ghats covering key locations like educational institutes, market places, panchayat offices, residential areas, etc.				Sites should cover nearby areas of the Ghats under AIWTDS, schools & colleges and other key locations
4	Leaflets distribution in community people, Schools, Colleges, market places, community shops nearby 34 ghats under the project jurisdiction	Jorhat Silchar Guwahati	5000	One- time activit y	Printing, supply and distribution of single page, A5 sized Multicolor leaflets in 150 GSM Glossy / Mat Paper with both side printing
			1		Ensure Media Participation Entrance Gate (Printing, Fabrication and installation of box shaped event gate of different sizes made of wooden plank branded with 250 GSM Flex .WXH = 18 feet x 20 feet)
		Guwahati	1	0.00	Media Registration Desk with Backdrop
5	Exposure visits/Meetings in: GGG terminal Tour demonstrating Night	North Guwahati Umananda Aphalamukh	2	One time activit	Banner at the cruise (Printing and Supply of Banners on wooden frame with masking and fitted with flex of 250 GSM of size of 8ft x 4ft
	Navigation in one site	Nimati	1	У	LED Screen backdrop
			1		Platform for stage
			1		Podium Branding
			50		Jute Bags
			50		Note pad (customize)
			50		Pen (customize)
			50		Invitation Cards (Printing and Supply of 2

81

No.		
of	Indica	tive S

SI. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
			50		paged 14.54 CM X 21 CM sized invitation letter in 250 GSM Glossy / Mat Paper for events under IWT Media Gifts
			50		Brochure with project details for Media (Printing and Supply of 4 pager, A4 Size multicolour Brochure of 250 GSM Glossy / Mat Paper
			6 1		Standee (Iron Frame Standee of size 6ft x 3ft fitted with flex of 250 GSM) Lights and Sound
6	Supply, Installation & Commissioning of LED Display Boards in 20 catamaran vessels	Jorhat Guwahati Silchar	20	Perm anent install ation	Screen size: 32 inch to 40 inch, P-4 (Pixel Pitch 4 mm), Min 16 Bit (true colour), Full colour, RBG 256 shades each or more, Sunny Day & Night visible. Remote control via Ethernet /LAN (RJ45) Ethernet for Data communication. The System must be configurable & display data content through LAN/Internet. Input Data Format: Static and Dynamic. Still:bmp, .jpg, .jpeg and .tiff Animation:mov, gif and swf etc. Video:- avi, mpg, mpeg,wmv,m1v,m2v,dat,mp4, vob and flv etc. All data will be send to board via LAN (RJ45). Brightness should be Minimum 5000 nits or Cd per Sq.mtr. Power supply: 200 V AC to 270 V AC. Auto on/off: Timer for

Sl. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
					time schedule based auto switching ON / OFF
					the AC power supply to the LED Display
					Board. Brightness Adjustment: 800 -
					1,200nits (Adjustable), Both Auto Auto -
					sensor based & Manual adjustment Refresh
					Rate: >1900 Hz, Refresh Frequency : >= 3840
					frames/sec. Border frame: ACP Sheet (Border
					of LED Screen). Graphics: Very High
					Resolution. P4 outdoor cabinet should be 960
					mm * 960 mm LED with Die Cast Al cabinet
					± 10 mm. Best Viewing Distance: >= 4 Metre.
					Installation & Commissioning: All Civil,
					Mechanical & wiring works along with supply
					of required materials are in vendor scope.
					Weather Protection: IP 65 for front & IP54 for
					back side or better
					For display of Text data, Photographs,
					cartoons and their combinations, Video,
					movies etc. remotely via. LAN. Display
					software must be compatible with Windows,
					and it is in vendor's scope of work. Display
					software required to be installed on
					PC/Server's (Supply of PC is in the scope of
					the vendor) and content to be displayed on the
					display board through LAN. Language
					Support: Multilingual support. Effects: Text

SI. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
					message, Graphics, Animation displays may
					be static/dynamic /Scrolling. Easy in
					operation and preparations of display
					information in graphics, animation, and text
					base in desired fonts. User Defined Graphics.
					Digital Timer -Havells MCB-Havells-25A
					Wear-4MM 3 core Havells (5 Meter) Junction
					Box etc. Mounting & Installation: Provision
					of nut - bolt mounting over pole, installation
					& commissioning will be in vendor scope.
					Mono Pole: Main Pole-10 Inch 6.5MM, 10 to
					12 Feet Pole, T Shape Pole-6 Inch 4.5MM 10
					Feet Pole.
					All are MS pipe, Foundation with material
					3Hx2Lx2W, Outdoor Iron Structure -Use-50 x
					50MM Angel
					40x40MM hollow pipe. ACP Board - Full
					ACP cover. Brand-Aludecor/Flexi boand.
					The agency to Supply and Installation at
					MTPS site.
					Warranty: Two years onsite Warranty
					(comprehensive) and support 24 x7 for LED
					based outdoor video wall, PC, Video
					Processor/Controller from the date of supply.
7	Branding at Events participated	Guwahati	10	4	Back lit Box pillars with messages on project

84

Sl. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
	by AIWTDS/AIWCL to create awareness about the project and its various interventions.	Jorhat Silchar			awareness (MS Pipe Backlit Pillar Sign board, rectangular shape, total 50sq.ft, with LED lighting, Size: 1ft x 8ft each side)
			1	4	Place one Hydraulic LED van with project branding. The LED display screen will play videos on the mentioned topics (As per specification mentioned in point no. 1)
			10	4	Iron Frame Standee of size 6ft x 3ft fitted with flex of 250 GSM
			1	4 days	Street Play 1 Team consisting of 5 artists to conduct street play at the Majuli Raas. The street play will be of 3-5 mins duration in Assamese language. Script for the street play need to be shared by the street play team with the client for approval The team to submit work completion reports which should include photos and videos of the on ground activity along with the details of participation of audience, campaign reach & impact analysis and a 2 min compiled video of the activity
8	Video blog engaging popular vlogger	Across Assam	1	One time	10 mins video to be shoot covering all the project sites and highlighting project details

SI. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
				activit y	and interventions along with sharing information on passenger's safety. Video to be shoot and edited by the Influencer or the agency team.
9	Organize meeting (20 people) at the Catamaran and highlight the various safety precautions taken under the project for the passenger's safety	Across Assam	1	One time activit y	Branding at the Catamaran and the approach road (Standee, entrance gate, Pole flags, banners, logo cut-outs in vinyl sunboard) Decoration at the catamaran and the approach road (carpeting, floral decoration along with colourful clothes and balloons) Sitting arrangements (Chairs & tables with frill cover) Tent cards to be placed in the table Video and photo documentation 2mins video of the activity capturing highlights of the event
10	Coffee Table Book		300		Printing and Supply of coffee table book. Size: 27.5cm X 27.8cm in hard bound in between 180 –200 pages, 220 GSM Art Paper
11	Place Roll up Standees with relevant information in all the associated department offices who are engaged in this project	Guwahati	10		Printing and Supply of standees 3ft x 6ft, roll up standees printed in star flex
12	Brandings at Airport	Guwahati Dibrugarh Silchar	3	90	Strategic Branding at Airport Conveyor Belt area, Security Check, Entry / Exit Both Static and LED Billboard

Sl. No	Activity	Geographic Area covered	Tentative Quantity	No. of Days	Indicative Specification
13	Branding at Railway Station	Guwahati Jorhat Moriani Silchar	3	90	Railway Station Entry / Exit Billboard Railway Station LED Railway Station Platform Hanging Board
			1		Press Conference
			2		Entrance Gate (Printing, Fabrication and installation of box shaped event gate of different sizes made of wooden plank branded with 250 GSM Flex .WXH = 18 feet x 20 feet)
			1		Media Registration Desk with Backdrop
			1		LED Screen backdrop
			1		Platform for stage
		Guwahati	1	Singl	Podium Branding
14	Launch Events	Jorhat	40	e day	Jute Bags for media
		Silchar	40	event	Note pad (customize)
			40		Pen (customize)
			20		VIP Invitation Cards (Printing and Supply of 2 paged 14.54 CM X 21 CM sized invitation letter in 250 GSM Glossy / Mat Paper for events under IWT
			40		Media Gifts
			200		Brochure with project details (Printing and Supply of 4 pager, A4 Size multicolour Brochure of 250 GSM Glossy / Mat Paper

Activity

Sl.

No

Geographic Area	Tentative	No.	
e	Quantity	of	Indicative Specification
covered		Days	
			Standee (Printing and Fabrication of
	10		Frame Standee of size 6ft x 3ft fitted

			- •	Days	
			10		Standee (Printing and Fabrication of Iron Frame Standee of size 6ft x 3ft fitted with flex of 250 GSM)
			6		LED Standee
			20		Pole Flags (Silk weather proof Flags to be placed on the approach road, 1.5 ft x 3 ft)
			10		Memento for VIP guests
			10		Gamucha
			1		Lights and Sound
17	Branding at Catamaran with company logo and details Guwahati Jorhat Silchar		200	Perm anent	Company and Project logo (Vinyl Sunboard Pasting)
17		60	install ation	Information board (Size: 6ft x 2ft, Vinyl Sunboard Pasting)	
18	Certificate printing	Guwahati Jorhat Silchar	200	As per requir ement	Printing and Supply of single pager, A4 Size multicolour certificates of 250-300 GSM Glossy / Mat Paper

Part III – Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms

Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

А.	General	Provisions	93
	1.1	Definitions	93
	1.2	Applicable Law	95
	1.3	Language	95
	1.4	Notices	95
	1.5	Location	95
	1.6	Authorized Representatives	95
	1.7	Inspection and Audit by the Bank	95
	1.8	Taxes and Duties	96
2.	Commen	cement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract	96
	2.1	Effectiveness of Contract	96
	2.3	Intended Completion Date	96
	2.4	Modification	96
	2.4.1	Value Engineering	97
	2.5	Force Majeure	97
	2.6	Termination	98
3.	Obligatio	ns of the Service Provider	99
	3.1	General	99
	3.2	Conflict of Interests	101
	3.3	Confidentiality	101
	3.4	Insurance to be Taken Out by the Service Provider	101
	3.5	Service Provider's Actions Requiring Employer's Prior Approval	102
	3.6	Reporting Obligations	102
	3.7	Documents Prepared by the Service Provider to Be the Property of the Employer	103
	3.8	Liquidated Damages	103
	3.9	Performance Security	104

	3.10	Fraud and Corruption	104
	3.11	Sustainable Procurement	104
	3.12	104	
	3.13	105	
	3.14	Security of the Site	105
	3.15	Protection of the Environment	106
	3.16	Cultural Heritage Findings	
4.	Service P	rovider's Personnel	
	4.1	Description of Personnel	107
	4.2	Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel	107
	4.3	Service Provider's Personnel	
5.	Obligatio	ns of the Employer	111
	5.1	Assistance and Exemptions	111
	5.2	Change in the Applicable Law	111
	5.3	Services and Facilities	112
6.	Payments	s to the Service Provider	112
6.	Payments 6.1	s to the Service Provider Lump-Sum Remuneration	
6.	·		
6.	6.1	Lump-Sum Remuneration	112
6.	6.1 6.2	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive	112
6.	6.1 6.2 6.3	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation	112 112 112 112 112
6.	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment	112 112 112 112 112 112
6.	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment Interest on Delayed Payments	112 112 112 112 112 112 112 112
	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment Interest on Delayed Payments Price Adjustment	112 112 112 112 112 112 112 112 113
	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment Interest on Delayed Payments Price Adjustment Dayworks	112 112 112 112 112 112 113 114
	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 Quality C	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment Interest on Delayed Payments Price Adjustment Dayworks	
7.	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 Quality C 7.1 7.2	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment Interest on Delayed Payments Price Adjustment Dayworks Control Identifying Defects	112 112 112 112 112 112 112 113 114 114
7.	6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7 Quality C 7.1 7.2	Lump-Sum Remuneration Contract Price Payment for Additional Services, and Performance Incentive Compensation Terms and Conditions of Payment Interest on Delayed Payments Price Adjustment Dayworks Control Identifying Defects Correction of Defects, and	112 112 112 112 112 112 113 114 114 114 114

Section VIII - General Conditions of Contract

A. General Provisions

1.1 Definitions Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this Contract have the following meanings:

- (a) The Adjudicator is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Service Provider to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in Sub-Clause 8.2 hereunder.
- (b) "Activity Schedule" is the priced and completed list of items of Services to be performed by the Service Provider forming part of his Bid;
- (c) "Bank" means the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.;
- (c) "Association" means the International Development Association, Washington, D.C., U.S.A.;
- (d) "Completion Date" means the date of completion of the Services by the Service Provider as certified by the Employer
- (e) "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties, to which these General Conditions of Contract (GCC) are attached, together with all the documents listed in Clause 1 of such signed Contract;
- (f) "Contract Price" means the price to be paid for the performance of the Services, in accordance with Clause 6;
- (g) "Dayworks" means varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Service Provider's employees and equipment, in addition to payments for associated materials and administration.
- (h) "Employer" means the party who employs the Service Provider
- (i) "Employer's Personnel" means all staff, labor and other employees of the Employer engaged in fulfilling the Employer's obligations under the Contract; and any other personnel identified as Employer's Personnel, by a notice from the Employer to the Service provider.
- (j)"ES"means Environmental and Social, as applicable, (including Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA), and Sexual Harassment (SH)).

- (k) "Foreign Currency" means any currency other than the currency of the country of the Employer;
- (l) "GCC" means these General Conditions of Contract;
- (m) "Government" means the Government of the Employer's Country;
- (n) "Local Currency" means the currency of the country of the Employer;
- (o) "Member," in case the Service Provider consist of a joint venture of more than one entity, means any of these entities; "Members" means all these entities, and "Member in Charge" means the entity specified in the SC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Service Provider' rights and obligations towards the Employer under this Contract;
- (p) "Party" means the Employer or the Service Provider, as the case may be, and "Parties" means both of them;
- (q) "Service Provider" is a person or corporate body whose Bid to provide the Services has been accepted by the Employer;
- (r) "Service Provider's Bid" means the completed Bidding Document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
- (s) "Service Provider's Personnel" means all personnel whom the Service Provider utilizes in the execution of the Services, including the staff, labor and other employees of the Service Provider and each Subcontractor; and any other personnel assisting the Service Provider in the execution of the Services;
- (t) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented;
- (u) "Specifications" means the specifications of the service included in the Bidding Document submitted by the Service Provider to the Employer
- (v) "Services" means the work to be performed by the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract, as described in Appendix A; and in the Specifications and Schedule of Activities included in the Service Provider's Bid.
- (w)"Sexual Exploitation and Abuse" "(SEA)" means the following:

Sexual Exploitation is defined as any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another.

Sexual Abuse is defined as the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions.

(x)"Sexual Harassment" "(SH)" is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature by the Service Provider's Personnel with other Service Provider's Personnel or Employer's Personnel;

- (y) "Subcontractor" means any entity to which the Service Provider subcontracts any part of the Services in accordance with the provisions of Sub-Clauses 3.5 and 4.
- **1.2 Applicable Law** The Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Employer's Country, unless otherwise **specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC).**
- **1.3 Language** This Contract has been executed in the language **specified in the SCC**, which shall be the binding and controlling language for all matters relating to the meaning or interpretation of this Contract.
- **1.4 Notices** Any notice, request, or consent made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent by registered mail, telex, telegram, or facsimile to such Party at the address **specified in the SCC.**
- **1.5 Location** The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in Appendix A, in the specifications and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in the Government's country or elsewhere, as the Employer may approve.
- **1.6 Authorized Representatives** Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under this Contract by the Employer or the Service Provider may be taken or executed by the officials **specified in the SCC**.
- 1.7 Inspection and Audit by the Bank
 Bank
 Pursuant to paragraph 2.2 e. of Attachment 1 to the General Conditions, the Service Provider shall permit and shall cause its agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the site and/or the accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts, records and other documents audited by auditors appointed

by the Bank. The Service Provider's and its Subcontractors' and subconsultants' attention is drawn to Sub-Clause 3.10 (Fraud and Corruption) which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures).

1.8 Taxes and Duties The Service Provider, Subcontractors, and their Personnel shall pay such taxes, duties, fees, and other impositions as may be levied under the Applicable Law, the amount of which is deemed to have been included in the Contract Price.

2. Commencement, Completion, Modification, and Termination of Contract

2.1 Effectiveness of Contract This Contract shall come into effect on the date the Contract is signed by both parties or such other later date as may be stated in the SCC.

2.2 Commencement

of Services

2.2.1 Program Before commencement of the Services, the Service Provider shall submit to the Employer for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order and timing for all activities. Such submission to the Employer shall include any applicable environmental and social management plan to manage environmental and social risks and impacts.

The Services shall be carried out in accordance with the approved Program as updated.

- 2.2.2 Starting The Service Provider shall start carrying out the Services thirty (30) days after the date the Contract becomes effective, or at such other date as may be specified in the SCC.
- 2.3 Intended Completion DateUnless terminated earlier pursuant to Sub-Clause 2.6, the Service Provider shall complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, as is specified in the SCC. If the Service Provider does not complete the activities by the Intended Completion Date, it shall be liable to pay liquidated damage as per Sub-Clause 3.8. In this case, the Completion Date will be the date of completion of all activities.
- 2.4 Modification Modification of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services or of the Contract Price, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties and shall not be effective until the consent of the Bank

or of the Association, as the case may be, has been obtained.

2.4.1 Value The Service Provider may prepare, at its own cost, a value engineering proposal at any time during the performance of the contract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, include the following;

- (a) the proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements;
- (b) a full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs (including life cycle costs, if applicable) the Employer may incur in implementing the value engineering proposal; and
- (c) a description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality.

The Employer may accept the value engineering proposal if the proposal demonstrates benefits that:

- (a) accelerates the delivery period; or
- (b) reduces the Contract Price or the life cycle costs to the Employer; or
- (c) improves the quality, efficiency, safety or sustainability of the services; or
- (d) yields any other benefits to the Employer,

without compromising the necessary functions of the Services.

If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Employer and results in:

- (a) a reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be the percentage specified in the SCC of the reduction in the Contract Price; or
- (b) an increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in life cycle costs due to any benefit described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Service Provider shall be the full increase in the Contract Price.

2.5 Force Majeure

2.5.1 Definition For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event

which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.

- 2.5.2 No Breach of Contract The failure of a Party to fulfill any of its obligations under the contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event (a) has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to carry out the terms and conditions of this Contract, and (b) has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.
- 2.5.3 Extension of Time Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.
- **2.5.4 Payments** During the period of their inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Service Provider shall be entitled to continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract, as well as to be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by them during such period for the purposes of the Services and in reactivating the Service after the end of such period.

2.6 Termination

- 2.6.1 By the Employer
 2.6.1 By the Employer
 The Employer may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice of termination to the Service Provider, to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.1:
 - (a) if the Service Provider does not remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations under the Contract, within thirty (30) days after being notified or within any further period as the Employer may have subsequently approved in writing;
 - (b) if the Service Provider become insolvent or bankrupt;
 - (c) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days; or
 - (d) if the Service Provider, in the judgment of the Employer has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as defined in paragraph 2.2 a. of Attachment 1 to the GCC, in competing for or in

executing the Contract

2.6.2 By the Service Provider may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the Employer, such notice to be given after the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) and (b) of this Sub-Clause 2.6.2:

- (a) if the Employer fails to pay any monies due to the Service Provider pursuant to this Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause 7 within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Service Provider that such payment is overdue; or
- (b) if, as the result of Force Majeure, the Service Provider is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days.
- 2.6.3 Suspension In the event that the World Bank suspends the loan or Credit to the Employer, from which part of the payments to the Service Provider are being made:
 - (a) The Employer is obligated to notify the Service Provider of such suspension within 7 days of having received the World Bank's suspension notice.
 - (b) If the Service Provider has not received sums due to by the due date stated in the SCC in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.5 the Service Provider may immediately issue a 14 day termination notice.

2.6.4 Payment Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Sub-Clauses 2.6.1 or 2.6.2, the Employer shall make the following payments to the Service Provider:

- (a) remuneration pursuant to Clause 6 for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination;
- (b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a),
 (b), (d) of Sub-Clause 2.6.1, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incident to the prompt and orderly termination of the Contract, including the cost of the return travel of the Service Provider's Personnel.

3. Obligations of the Service Provider

3.1 General The Service Provider shall perform the Services in accordance with the Specifications and the Activity Schedule, and carry out its obligations with all due diligence, efficiency, and economy,

in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe methods.

The Service Provider shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to maintain the health and safety of the Service Provider's Personnel employed for the execution of Services at thelocations in the Employer's country where the Services are executed.

If **required in the SCC**, the Service Providershall submit to the Employer for its approval a health and safety manual which has been specifically prepared for the Contract.

The health and safety manual shall be in addition to any other similar document required under applicable health and safety regulations and laws.

The health and safety manual shall set out any applicable health and safety requirementunder the Contract,

- (a) which may include:
 - (i) the procedures to establish and maintain a safe working environment;
 - the procedures for prevention, preparedness and response activities to be implemented in the case of an emergency event (i.e. an unanticipated incident, arising from natural or man-made hazards);
 - (iii) the measures to be taken to avoid or minimize the potential for community exposure to waterborne, water-based, water-related, and vectorborne diseases,
 - (iv) the measures to be implemented to avoid or minimize the spread of communicable diseases; and
- (b) any other requirements stated in the Employer's Requirements.

The Service Provider shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful adviser to the Employer, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Employer's legitimate interests in any dealings with Subcontractors or third parties.

The Service Provider shall require that its Subcontractors execute the Services in accordance with the Contract, including complying with applicable ES requirements and the obligations set out in GCC Sub-Clause 3.12.

3.2 Conflict of Interests

- 3.2.1 Service The remuneration of the Service Provider pursuant to Clause 6 **Provider Not** shall constitute the Service Provider's sole remuneration in to Benefit connection with this Contract or the Services, and the Service Provider shall not accept for their own benefit any trade from Commissions commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the Services or in the and Discounts. discharge of their obligations under the Contract, and the Service Provider shall use their best efforts to ensure that the Service Provider's Personnel, any Subcontractors, and agents of either of them similarly shall not receive any such additional remuneration.
- 3.2.2 Service Provider and Affiliates Not to be Otherwise Interested in Project 3.2.2 Service Provider and Affiliates Not to be Otherwise Interested in Project The Service Provider agree that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Service Provider and its affiliates, as well as any Subcontractor and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works, or Services (other than the Services and any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.
- 3.2.3 Prohibition of Conflicting Activities Neither the Service Provider nor its Subcontractors nor the Personnel shall engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activity that would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract. The Service provider has an obligation and shall ensure that its Service Provider's Personnel and Sub-consultants shall have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interest of the Employer, or that may reasonably be perceived as having this effect. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- **3.3 Confidentiality** The Service Provider, its Subcontractors, and the Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two (2) years after the expiration of this Contract, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Project, the Services, this Contract, or the Employer's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Employer.
- **3.4 Insurance to be**
Taken Out by the
Service ProviderThe Service Provider (a) shall take out and maintain, and shall
cause any Subcontractors to take out and maintain, at its (or the
Subcontractors', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and

conditions approved by the Employer, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be specified in the SCC; and (b) at the Employer's request, shall provide evidence to the Employer showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums have been paid. **3.5 Service Provider's** The Service Provider shall obtain the Employer's prior approval **Actions Requiring** in writing before taking any of the following actions: **Employer's Prior** entering into a subcontract for the performance of any part (a) Approval of the Services. (b) appointing such members of the Personnel not listed by Appendix ("Key Personnel name in С and Subcontractors"), (c) changing the Program of activities; and any other action that may be specified in the SCC. (d) **3.6 Reporting** The Service Provider shall submit to the Employer the reports **Obligations** and documents specified in Appendix B in the form, in the numbers, and within the periods set forth in the said Appendix. If specified in Appendix B, the reporting requirements shall include applicable environmental and social aspects. The Service Provider shall inform the Employer immediately of any allegation, incident or accident in the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are executed, which has or is likely to have a significant adverse effect on the environment, the affected communities, the public, Employer's Personnel or Service Provider's Personnel. This includes, but is not limited to, any incident or accident causing fatality or serious injury; significant adverse effects or damage to private property; or any allegation of SEA and/or SH. In case of SEA and/or SH, while maintaining confidentiality as appropriate, the type of allegation (sexual exploitation, sexual abuse or sexual harassment), gender and age of the person who experienced the alleged incident should be included in the information. The Service Provider, upon becoming aware of the allegation, incident or accident, shall also immediately inform the Employer of any such incident or accident on the Subcontractors' or suppliers' premises relating to the Services which has or is likely to have a significant adverse effect on the environment, the affected communities, the public, Employer's

> Personnel or Service Provider's, its Subcontractors' and suppliers' Personnel. The notification shall provide sufficient

detail regarding such incidents or accidents. The Service provider shall provide full details of such incidents or accidents to the Employer within the timeframe agreed with the Employer.

The Service Provider shall require its Subcontractors and suppliers to immediately notify theService Provider of any incidents or accidents referred to in this Sub- Clause.

- **3.7 Documents** All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, and other documents and software submitted by the Service Provider in Prepared by the Service Provider to accordance with Sub-Clause 3.6 shall become and remain the Be the Property of property of the Employer, and the Service Provider shall, not the Employer later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents and software to the Employer, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Service Provider may retain a copy of such documents and software. Restrictions about the future use of these documents, if any, shall be **specified in the SCC.**
- 3.8 Liquidated Damages
 - **3.8.1 Payments of** Liquidated Damages
 The Service Provider shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the SCC for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the SCC. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Service Provider. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Service Provider's liabilities.
 - **3.8.2 Correction** for Overpayment If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Employer shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Service Provider by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Service Provider shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in Sub-Clause 6.5.
 - **3.8.3 Lack of performance penalty** If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, a penalty for Lack of performance will be paid by the Service Provider. The amount to be paid will be calculated as a percentage of the cost of having the Defect corrected, assessed as described in Sub-Clause 7.2 and **specified in the SCC.**

3.9 Performance Security	If required as specified in the SCC , the Service Provider shall provideto the EmployeraPerformance Securityforthe performance of the Contract, in the amount specified in theSCC and no later than the date specified in the Letter of acceptance.
	As specified in the SCC , the Performance Security, if required, shall be denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer; and shall be in one of the format stipulated by the Employer in the SCC , or in another format acceptable to the Employer.
	The performance Security shall be valid until a date 28 days from the Completion Date of the Contract in case of a bank guarantee, and until one year from the Completion Date of the Contract in the case of a Performance Bond.
3.10 Fraud and Corruption	The Bank requires compliance with the Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures as set forth in the WBG's Sanctions Framework, as set forth in the Attachment 1 to the GCC.
	The Employer requires the Service Provider to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.
3.11 Sustainable Procurement	The Service Provider shall conform to the sustainable procurement contractual provisions, if and as specified in the SCC.
3.12Code of Conduct	The Service Provider shall have a Code of Conduct for the Service Provider's Personnel employed for the execution of the Services at the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are provided.
	The Service Provider shall take all necessary measures to ensure that each Service Provider's Personnel is made aware of the Code of Conduct including specific behaviors that are prohibited, and understands the consequences of engaging in such prohibited behaviors.
	These measures include providing instructions and documentation that can be understood by the Service Provider's Personnel and seeking to obtain that person's signature acknowledging receipt of such instructions and/or

documentation, as appropriate.

	The Service Provider shall also ensure, as applicable, that the Code of Conduct is visibly displayed inlocations in the Employer's country where the Services are executed swell as in areas outside the locations accessible to the local community and any project affected people. The posted Code of Conduct shall be provided in languages comprehensible to Service Provider's Personnel, Employer's Personnel and the local community.
	The Service Provider's Management Strategy and Implementation Plans, as applicable, shall include appropriate processes for the Service Provider to verify compliance with these obligations.
3.13Training of Service Provider's Personnel	The Service Provider shall provide appropriate training to its relevant personnel on any applicable ES aspects of the Contract, including appropriate sensitization on prohibition of SEA/SH.
	As stated in the Employer's Requirements or as instructed by the Employer, the Service Provider shall also allow appropriate opportunities for the relevant Service Provider's Personnel to be trainedon applicable ES aspects of the Contractby the Employer's Personnel and/or other personnel assigned by the Employer.
	The Service Provider shall provide training on SEA and SH, including its prevention, to any of its personnel who has a role to supervise other Service Provider's Personnel.
3.14 Security of the Site	Unless stated otherwise in the SCC , the Service Provider shall be responsible for the security at the locations in the Employer's country where the services are carried out including providing and maintaining at its own expense all lighting, fencing, and watching when and where necessary for the proper execution and the protection of the locations, or for the safety of the owners and occupiers of adjacent property and for the safety of the public.
	If required in the SCC , prior to the Starting Date for the commencement of Services,theService Provider shall submit for the Employer's No-objection a security management plan that sets the security arrangements for the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are executed.
	In making security arrangements, the Service Provider shall be guided by applicable laws and any other requirements that may be stated in the Employer's Requirements.

The Service Provider shall (i) conduct appropriate background
checks on any personnel retained to provide security; (ii) train
the security personnel adequately (or determine that they are
properly trained) in the use of force (and where applicable,
firearms), and appropriate conduct towards the Service
Provider's personnel, Employer's personnel and affected
communities; and (iii) require the security personnel to act
within the applicable Laws and any requirements set out in the
Employer's Reqquirements.

The Service Provider shall not permit any use of force by security personnel in providing security except when used for preventive and defensive purposes in proportion to the nature and extent of the threat.

3.15 Protection of the Environment	As applicable, the Service Provider shall take all necessary measures to:	
	i. protect the environment (both on and off the locations where the Services are executed) from damages resulting from its operations/and or activities; and	
	 ii. limit damage and nuisance to people and property resulting from pollution, noise and other results of the Service Provider's operations and/ or activities. 	
	The Service Provider shall ensure that any emissions, surface discharges, effluent and any other pollutants from the its activities shall exceed neither the values that may be indicated in the Employer's Requirements, nor those prescribed by applicable laws.	
	In the event of damage to the environment, property and/or nuisance to people, on or off the locations where the Services are carried out, as a result of the Service Provider's operations and/or activities, the Service Provider shall agree with the Employer the appropriate actions and time scale to remedy, as practicable, the damaged environment to its former condition. The Service Provider shall implement such remedies at its cost to the satisfaction of the Employer.	
3.16 Cultural Heritage Findings	All fossils, coins, articles of value or antiquity, structures, groups of structures, and other remains or items of geological, archaeological, paleontological, historical, architectural, religious interest found on the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are carried out shall be placed under the care and custody of the Employer.	

As soon as practicable after discovery of any such finding, the Service Provider shall give a notice to the Employer, to give the Employer the opportunity to promptly inspect and/or investigate the finding before it is disturbed and to issue instructions for dealing with it.

4. Service Provider's Personnel

- 4.1 Description of Personnel
 The titles, agreed job descriptions, minimum qualifications, and estimated periods of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of the Service Provider's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C. The Key Personnel and Subcontractors listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C are hereby approved by the Employer.
- 4.2 Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel
 (a) Except as the Employer may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Service Provider, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Key Personnel, the Service Provider shall provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.

(b) The Employer may require the Service Provider to remove (or cause to be removed) a Service Provider's Personnel, who:

- (i) persists in any misconduct or lack of care;
- (ii) carries out duties incompetently or negligently;
- (iii) fails to comply with any provision of the Contract;
- (iv) persists in any conduct which is prejudicial to safety, health, or the protection of the environment;
- (v) based on reasonable evidence, is determined to have engaged in Fraud and Corruption during the execution of the Contract;
- (vi) has been recruited from the Employer's Personnel;
- (vii) undertakes behavior which breaches the Code of Conduct (ES), as applicable.

As appropriate, the Service provider shall then promptly appoint(or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement with equivalent skills and experience.

withstanding any requirement from the Employer toremoveorcause

to remove any person, the Service provider shall take immediate action as appropriate in response to any violation of (i) through (vii) above. Such immediate action shall include removing (or causing to be removed) from the locations where the Services are carried out , any Service Provider's Personnel who engages in (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) or (vii) above or has been recruited as stated in (vi) above.

(c) The Service Provider shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.

4.3 Service Provider's	Engagement of Service Provider's Personnel
Personnel	The Service Provider shall make arrangements for the engagement of the Service Provider's Personnel.
	The Service Provider is encouraged, to the extent practicable and reasonable, to use local labor that has the necessary skills.
	Subject to GCC 5.1, the Service Provider shall be responsible for obtaining all necessary permit(s) and/or visa(s) from the appropriate authorities for the entryof all personnel to be employed for the Services into the Employer's country.
	The Service Provider shall at its own expense provide the means of repatriation to all of its personnel employed for the execution of the Services to the place where they were recruited or to their domicile. It shall also provide suitable temporary maintenance of all such persons from the cessation of their employment on the Contract to the date programmed for their departure.
	Persons in the Service of Employer
	The Service Provider shall not recruit, or attempt to recruit, staff and labor from amongst the Employer's Personnel.
	Labor Laws
	The Service provider shall comply with all the relevant labor laws applicable to the Service Provider's Personnel, including laws relating to their employment, health, safety, welfare, immigration and emigration, and shall allow them all their legal rights.
	The Service Provider shall at all times during the progress of the Contract use its best endeavors to prevent any unlawful, riotous or disorderly conduct or behavior by or amongst its employees and the labor of its Subcontractors.
	The Service Provider shall, in all dealings with its personnel currently employed on or connected with the Contract, pay due regard to all recognized festivals, official holidays, religious or

other customs and all local laws and regulations pertaining to the employment of labor.

Rates of Wages and Conditions of Labor

The Service Provider shall pay rates of wages, and observe conditions of labor, which are not lower than those established for the trade or industry where the Service is carried out. If no established rates or conditions are applicable, the Service Provider shall pay rates of wages and observe conditions which are not lower than the general level of wages and conditions observed locally by employers whose trade or industry is similar to that of the Service Provider.

The Service Provider shall inform the Service Provider's Personnel about their liability to pay personal income taxes in the Employer's country in respect of such of their salaries, wages, allowances and any benefits as are subject to tax under the laws of the country for the time being in force, and the Service provider shall perform such duties in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such laws.

Facilities for Service Provider's Personnel

If stated in the SCC and subject to GCC Sub-Clause 5.3, the Service Provider shall provide and maintain all necessary accommodation and welfare facilities for the Service Provider's Personnel employed for the execution of the Contract at the locations in the Employer's country where the Services are provided.

In the event of the death of any of the Service Provider's Personnel or accompanying members of their families, the Service Provider shall be responsible for making the appropriate arrangements for their return or burial, unless otherwise specified in the SCC.

Workers' Organizations

In countries where the relevant labor laws recognize workers' rights to form and to join workers' organizations of their choosing and to bargain collectively without interference, the Service Provider shall comply with such laws. In such circumstances, the role of legally established workers' organizations and legitimate workers' representatives will be respected, and they will be provided with information needed for meaningful negotiation in a timely manner. Where the relevant labor laws substantially restrict workers' organizations, the Service Provider shall enable alternative means for the service provider's Personnel to express their grievances and protect their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment. The Service Provider shall not seek to influence or control these alternative means. The Service Provider shall not discriminate or retaliate against the Service Provider's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organizations and collective bargaining or alternative mechanisms. Workers' organizations are expected to fairly represent the workers in the workforce.

Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity

The Service Provider shall not make decisions relating to the employment or treatment of Service Provider's Personnel on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Service Provider shall base the employment of Service Provider's Personnel on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and shall not discriminate with respect to any aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, job assignment, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and disciplinary practices.

Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on the inherent requirements of the job shall not be deemed discrimination. The Service Provider shall provide protection and assistance as necessary to ensure non-discrimination and equal opportunity, including for specific groups such as women, people with disabilities, migrant workers and children (of working age in accordance with this Sub-Clause).

Forced Labor

The Service Provider, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage forced labor. Forced labor consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labor, such as indentured labor, bonded labor or similar labor-contracting arrangements.

No persons shall be employed or engaged who have been subject to trafficking. Trafficking in persons is defined as the recruitment, transportation, transfer, harbouring or receipt of persons by means of the threat or use of force or other forms of coercion, abduction, fraud, deception, abuse of power, or of a position of vulnerability, or of the giving or receiving of payments or benefits to achieve the consent of a person having control over another person, for the purposes of exploitation.

Child Labor

The Service Provider, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child under the age of 14 unless the national law specifies a higher age (the minimum age).

The Service Provider, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child between the minimum age and the age of 18 in a manner that is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development.

The Service Provider including its Subcontractors, shall only employ or engage children between the minimum age and the age of 18 after an appropriate risk assessment has been conducted by the Service Provider with the Employer's consent. The Service Provider shall be subject to regular monitoring by the Employer that includes monitoring of health, working conditions and hours of work.

Work considered hazardous for children is work that, by its nature or the circumstances in which it is carried out, is likely to jeopardize the health, safety, or morals of children. Such work activities prohibited for children include work:

- (a) with exposure to physical, psychological or sexual abuse;
- (b) underground, underwater, working at heights or in confined spaces;
- (c) with dangerous machinery, equipment or tools, or involving handling or transport of heavy loads;
- (d) in unhealthy environments exposing children to hazardous substances, agents, or processes, or to temperatures, noise or vibration damaging to health; or
- (e) under difficult conditions such as work for long hours, during the night or in confinement on the premises of the employer.

5. Obligations of the Employer

- **5.1 Assistance and Exemptions** The Employer shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall provide the Service Provider such assistance and exemptions as **specified in the SCC.**
- 5.2 Change in the Applicable If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Law with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost of the Services rendered by the Service Provider, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Service Provider under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties, and corresponding

Incentive

adjustments shall be made to the amounts referred to in Sub-Clauses 6.2 (a) or (b), as the case may be.

5.3 Services and
FacilitiesThe Employer shall make available to the Service Provider the
Services and Facilities listed under Appendix F.

6. Payments to the Service Provider

- 6.1 Lump-Sum Remuneration The Service Provider's remuneration shall not exceed the Contract Price and shall be a fixed lump-sum including all Subcontractors' costs, and all other costs incurred by the Service Provider in carrying out the Services described in Appendix A. Except as provided in Sub-Clause 5.2, the Contract Price may only be increased above the amounts stated in Sub-Clause 6.2 if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with Sub-Clauses 2.4 and 6.3.
- **6.2 Contract Price** (a) The price payable in local currency is **set forth in the SCC.**
 - (b) The price payable in foreign currency is set forth in the SCC.
- 6.3 Payment for Additional Services, and Performance
 6.3.1 For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional Services as may be agreed under Sub-Clause 2.4, a breakdown of the lump-sum price is provided in Appendices D and E.
 - **Compensation** 6.3.2 **If the SCC so specify,** the service provider shall be paid performance incentive compensation as set out in the Performance Incentive Compensation appendix.
- 6.4 Terms and Conditions of Payment
 Payment
 Payment
 Payment
 Payment
 Payment
 Payment
 Payment (Advance for Mobilization, Materials and Supplies) shall be made against the provision by the Service Provider of a bank guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period stated in the SCC. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions listed in the SCC for such payment have been met, and the Service Provider have submitted an invoice to the Employer specifying the amount due.
- 6.5 Interest on Delayed If the Employer has delayed payments beyond fifteen (15) days after the due date stated in the SCC, interest shall be paid to the Service Provider for each day of delay at the rate stated in the SCC.
- 6.6 Price6.6.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for in the SCC. If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate, after deducting for Advance Payment, shall be adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each

currency. A separate formula of the type indicated below applies to each Contract currency:

$P_c = A_c + B_c Lmc/Loc + C_c Imc/Ioc$

Where:

 P_c is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency "c".

 A_c , B_c and C_c are coefficients specified in the SCC, representing: A_c the nonadjustable portion; B_c the adjustable portion relative to labor costs and C_c the adjustable portion for other inputs, of the Contract Price payable in that specific currency "c"; and

Lmc is the index prevailing at the first day of the month of the corresponding invoice date and Loc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for labor; both in the specific currency "c".

Imc is the index prevailing at the first day of the month of the corresponding invoice date and Ioc is the index prevailing 28 days before Bid opening for other inputs payable; both in the specific currency "c".

If a price adjustment factor is applied to payments made in a currency other than the currency of the source of the index for a particular indexed input, a correction factor Zo/Zn will be applied to the respective component factor of pn for the formula of the relevant currency. Zo is the number of units of currency of the country of the index, equivalent to one unit of the currency payment on the date of the base index, and Zn is the corresponding number of such currency units on the date of the current index.

- 6.6.2 If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.
- 6.7 Dayworks6.7.1 If applicable, the Daywork rates in the Service Provider's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of Services only when the Employer has given written instructions in advance for additional services to be paid in that way.
 - 6.7.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Service Provider on forms approved by the Employer. Each

completed form shall be verified and signed by the Employer representative as indicated in Sub-Clause 1.6 within two days of the Services being performed.

6.7.3 The Service Provider shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms as indicated in Sub-Clause 6.7.2

7. Quality Control

- 7.1 Identifying Defects
 The principle and modalities of Inspection of the Services by the Employer shall be as indicated in the SCC. The Employer shall check the Service Provider's performance and notify him of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Service Provider's responsibilities. The Employer may instruct the Service Provider to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any service that the Employer considers may have a Defect. Defect Liability Period is as defined in the SCC.
- 7.2 Correction of Defects, and Lack of Performance Penalty
- (a) The Employer shall give notice to the Service Provider of any Defects before the end of the Contract. The Defects liability period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
- (b) Every time notice a Defect is given, the Service Provider shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Employer's notice.
- (c) If the Service Provider has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Employer's notice, the Employer will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, the Service Provider will pay this amount, and a Penalty for Lack of Performance calculated as described in Sub-Clause 3.8.

8. Settlement of Disputes

- **8.1 Amicable** The Parties shall use their best efforts to settle amicably all disputes arising out of or in connection with this Contract or its interpretation.
- 8.2 Dispute Settlement
 8.2.1 If any dispute arises between the Employer and the Service Provider in connection with, or arising out of, the Contract or the provision of the Services, whether during carrying out the Services or after their completion, the matter shall be referred to the Adjudicator within 14 days of the notification of disagreement of one party to the other.
 - 8.2.2 The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days

of receipt of a notification of a dispute.

8.2.3 The Adjudicator shall be paid by the hour at the rate **specified in the BDS and SCC**, together with reimbursable expenses of the types **specified in the SCC**, and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Service Provider, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision will be final and binding.

8.2.4 Unless otherwise agreed by both the Employer and the Service Provider, arbitration shall be conducted as follows:

(a) For contracts with foreign Service Providers:

unless otherwise specified in the SCC; the dispute shall be finally settled under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce; by one or three arbitrators appointed in accordance with these Rules. The place of arbitration shall be the neutral location **stated in the SCC**; and the arbitration shall be conducted in the ruling language **stated in the SCC**;

and

- (b) For contracts with national Service Providers, arbitration with proceedings conducted in accordance with the laws of the Employer's country.
- 8.2.5 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Service Provider agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator will be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Service Provider. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Service Provider, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority **designated in the SCC** at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.

ATTACHMENT 1

Fraud and Corruption

(Text in this Attachment shall not be modified)

1. Purpose

1.1 The Bank's Anti-Corruption Guidelines and this annex apply with respect to procurement under Bank Investment Project Financing operations.

2. Requirements

2.1 The Bank requires that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank financing); bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors and suppliers; any sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers; any agents (whether declared or not); and any of their personnel, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of Bank-financed contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption.

2.2 To this end, the Bank:

- a. Defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - i. "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - ii. "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
 - iii. "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - iv. "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
 - v. "obstructive practice" is:
 - (a) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or
 - (b) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.2 e. below.

- b. Rejects a proposal for award if the Bank determines that the firm or individual recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- c. In addition to the legal remedies set out in the relevant Legal Agreement, may take other appropriate actions, including declaring misprocurement, if the Bank determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement process, selection and/or execution of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- d. Pursuant to the Bank's Anti- Corruption Guidelines and in accordance with the Bank's prevailing sanctions policies and procedures, may sanction a firm or individual, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible (i) to be awarded or otherwise benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or in any other manner;¹ (ii) to be a nominated² sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider of an otherwise eligible firm being awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (iii) to receive the proceeds of any loan made by the Bank or otherwise to participate further in the preparation or implementation of any Bank-financed project;
- e. Requires that a clause be included in bidding/request for proposals documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring (i) bidders (applicants/proposers), consultants, contractors, and suppliers, and their sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers, suppliers, agents personnel, permit the Bank to inspect³ all accounts, records and other documents relating to procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

¹ For the avoidance of doubt, a sanctioned party's ineligibility to be awarded a contract shall include, without limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing interest in a consultancy, and bidding, either directly or as a nominated subcontractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment introducing a material modification to any existing contract.

² A nominated sub-contractor, nominated consultant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or nominated service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

³ Inspections in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve fact-finding activities undertaken by the Bank or persons appointed by the Bank to address specific matters related to investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes but is not limited to: accessing and examining a firm's or individual's financial records and information, and making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information (whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making copies thereof as relevant; interviewing staff and other relevant individuals; performing physical inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.

Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
1.1	The words "in the Government's country" are amended to read "in India."
1.1(a)	The Adjudicator is: will be named during Contract Negotiation
1.1(e)	The contract name is <i>HIRING OF IMPLEMENTATION AGENCY FOR</i> <i>PRINTING AND EXECUTION OF OUTDOOR & OUTREACH</i> <i>ACTIVITIES</i>
1.1(h)	The Employer is Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society
1.1(0)	NA
1.1 (q)	The Service Provider is
1.2	The Applicable Law is: Republic of India
1.3	The language is <i>English</i>
1.4	The addresses are: Attention: State Project Director Address: Assam Inland Water Transport Development Society, 3rd Floor, Directorate of Inland Water Transport, Assam, Guwahati - 7, India Telephone: +91 361 2462677 Electronic mail address: dir.iwtds-as@gov.in Website: https://aiwtdsociety.in/ and www.iwtdirectorate.assam.gov.in Service Provider:
1.6	The Authorized Representatives are: For the Employer: For the Service Provider:
2.1	The date on which this Contract shall come into effect is Date of signing of

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract	
	contract	
2.2.2	The Starting Date for the commencement of Services is	
2.3	The Intended Completion Date is <i>31st December 2024</i> .	
2.4.1	Not Applicable	
3.1	Not Applicable	
3.2.3	Activities prohibited after termination of this Contract are: The created content shall be under the ownership of the employer and shall not be used/promoted/ reproduced in any other way without prior written permission from the employer. Infringement of intellectual rights.	
3.4	The risks and coverage by insurance shall be:	
	(i) Third Party motor vehicle: Yes	
	(ii) Third Party liability: Yes	
	(iii) Employer's liability and workers' compensation: Yes	
	(iv) Professional liability: Yes	
	(v) Loss or damage to equipment and property: Yes	
3.5(d)	Posting of any media content in any social network website	
3.7	Restrictions on the use of documents prepared by the Service Provider are:	
	The created content shall be under the ownership of the employer and shall not be used/promoted/ reproduced in any other way without prior written permission from the employer. Infringement of intellectual rights.	
3.8.1	The liquidated damages rate is 0.05% per day	
	The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole contract is ten percent of the final Contract Price.	
3.8.3	The percentage to be used for the calculation of Lack of performance Penalty is 5%.	
3.9	A Performance Security shall be required	
	If required, the Performance Security shall be in the form of: <i>a Bank Guarantee</i> . The amount of the Performance Security shall be:10% of the Contract Price.	
3.11	Deleted	

Number of GC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract	
3.13	The Service Provider shall not submit a security management plan.	
5.1	The assistance provided to the Service Provider are:	
	 Project related information Updates Requirement 	
	No e exemptions shall be provided to the Agency.	
6.2 (a)	The amount in local currency is INR.	
6.2(b)	The amount in foreign currency or currencies is Not Applicable.	
6.3.2	The performance incentive paid to the Service Provider shall be: Not Applicable	
6.4	The payment under this assignment shall be made after due acceptance of the deliverables by the Society as per the actual executed quantity basis the specification provided and the unit rate quoted by the Agency.	
6.5	Payment shall be made within 30 days of receipt of the invoice and the relevant documents specified in Sub-Clause 6.4, and within 60days in the case of the final payment. The interest rate: Not Applicable	
6.6.1	Price adjustment is Not Applicable in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.6.	
7.1	The principle and modalities of inspection of the Services by the Employer are as follows: <i>Section VII – Activity Schedule</i>	
	The Defects Liability Period: Not Applicable	
8.2.3	Shall be intimated during the Contract Negotiation	
8.2.5	The designated Appointing Authority for a new Adjudicator is Indian Council of Arbitration	

Appendices

Appendix A - Description of the Services

Give detailed descriptions of the Services to be provided, dates for completion of various tasks, place of performance for different tasks, specific tasks to be approved by Employer, etc.

Appendix B - Schedule of Payments and Reporting Requirements

List all milestones for payments and list the format, frequency, and contents of reports or products to be delivered; persons to receive them; dates of submission; etc. If no reports are to be submitted, state here "Not applicable."

Appendix C - Key Personnel and Subcontractors

List under:	C-1	Titles [and names, if already available], detailed job descriptions and minimum qualifications of foreign Personnel to be assigned to work in the Government's country, and staff-months for each.
	<i>C-2</i>	Same as C-1 for Key foreign Personnel to be assigned to work outside the

- C-2 Same as C-1 for Key foreign Personnel to be assigned to work outside the Government's country.
- C-3 List of approved Subcontractors (if already available); same information with respect to their Personnel as in C-1 or C-2.
- C-4 Same information as C-1 for Key local Personnel.

Appendix D—Breakdown of Contract Price in Foreign Currency(ies)

List here the elements of cost used to arrive at the breakdown of the lump-sum price—foreign currency portion:

1. Rates for Equipment Usage or Rental or for Personnel (Key Personnel and other Personnel).

2. Reimbursable expenditures.

This appendix will exclusively be used for determining remuneration for additional Services.

Appendix E - Breakdown of Contract Price in Local Currency

List here the elements of cost used to arrive at the breakdown of the lump-sum price—local currency portion:

1. Rates for Equipment Usage or Rental or for Personnel (Key Personnel and other Personnel).

2. *Reimbursable expenditures.*

This appendix will exclusively be used for determining remuneration for additional Services.

Appendix F - Services and Facilities Provided by the Employer

Appendix G - Performance Incentive Compensation Appendix (Not Applicable)

Appendix H- CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SERVICE PROVIDER's PERSONNEL

Section X - Contract Forms

Table of Forms

Notification of Intention to Award	
Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form	
Letter of Acceptance	
Form of Contract	134
Performance Security	
Advance Payment Security	141

Notification of Intention to Award

[This Notification of Intention to Award shall be sent to each Bidder that submitted a Bid.]

[Send this Notification to the Bidder's Authorized Representative named in the Bidder Information Form]

For the attention of Bidder's Authorized Representative Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name] Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address] Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers] Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]

[IMPORTANT: insert the date that this Notification is transmitted to Bidders. The Notification must be sent to all Bidders simultaneously. This means on the same date and as close to the same time as possible.] DATE OF TRANSMISSION: This Notification is sent by: [email/fax] on [date] (local time)

Notification of Intention to Award

Employer: [insert the name of the Employer] Project:[insert name of project] Contract title: [insert the name of the contract] Country: [insert country where RFB is issued] Loan No. /Credit No. / Grant No.: [insert reference number for loan/credit/grant] RFB No: [insert RFB reference number from Procurement Plan]

This Notification of Intention to Award (Notification) notifies you of our decision to award the above contract. The transmission of this Notification begins the Standstill Period. During the Standstill Period you may:

- a) request a debriefing in relation to the evaluation of your Bid, and/or
- b) submit a Procurement-related Complaint in relation to the decision to award the contract.

Name:	[insert nameof successful Bidder]
Address:	[insert addressof the successful Bidder]
Contract price:	[insert contract priceof the successful Bid]

1. The successful Bidder

2. Other Bidders [INSTRUCTIONS: insert names of all Bidders that submitted a Bid. If the Bid's price was evaluated include the evaluated price as well as the Bid price as read out.]

Name of Bidder	Bid price	Evaluated Bid price (if applicable)
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]
[insert name]	[insert Bid price]	[insert evaluated price]

3. Reason/s why your Bid was unsuccessful

[INSTRUCTIONS: State the reason/s why <u>this</u> Bidder's Bid was unsuccessful. Do NOT include: (a) a point by point comparison with another Bidder's Bid or (b) information that is marked confidential by the Bidder in its Bid.]

4. How to request a debriefing

DEADLINE: The deadline to request a debriefing expires at midnight on [*insert date*] (local time).

You may request a debriefing in relation to the results of the evaluation of your Bid. If you decide to request a debriefing your written request must be made within three (3) Business Days of receipt of this Notification of Intention to Award.

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Bidder, contact details; and address the request for debriefing as follows:

Attention: [insert full name of person, if applicable]

Title/position: [insert title/position]

Agency: [insert name of Employer]

Email address: [insert email address]

Fax number: [insert fax number] **delete if not used**

If your request for a debriefing is received within the 3 Business Days deadline, we will provide the debriefing within five (5) Business Days of receipt of your request. If we are unable to provide the debriefing within this period, the Standstill Period shall be extended by five (5) Business Days after the date that the debriefing is provided. If this happens, we will notify you and confirm the date that the extended Standstill Period will end.

The debriefing may be in writing, by phone, video conference call or in person. We shall promptly advise you in writing how the debriefing will take place and confirm the date and time.

If the deadline to request a debriefing has expired, you may still request a debriefing. In this case, we will provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fifteen (15) Business

Days from the date of publication of the Contract Award Notice.

5. How to make a complaint

Period: Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award shall be submitted by midnight, [*insert date*] (local time).

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Bidder, contact details; and address the Procurement-related Complaint as follows:

Attention: [insert full name of person, if applicable]

Title/position: [insert title/position]

Agency: [insert name of Employer]

Email address: [insert email address]

Fax number: [insert fax number] delete if not used

At this point in the procurement process, you may submit a Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award the contract. You do not need to have requested, or received, a debriefing before making this complaint. Your complaint must be submitted within the Standstill Period and received by us before the Standstill Period ends.

Further information:

For more information see the <u>Procurement Regulations for IPF Borrowers (Procurement Regulations)[https://policies.worldbank.org/sites/ppf3/PPFDocuments/Forms/DispPage.aspx?</u> docid=4005] (Annex III). You should read these provisions before preparing and submitting your complaint. In addition, the World Bank's Guidance "<u>How to make a Procurement-related Complaint</u>" [http://www.worldbank.org/en/projects-operations/products-and-services/brief/procurement-new-framework#framework] provides a useful explanation of the process, as well as a sample letter of complaint.

In summary, there are four essential requirements:

- 1. You must be an 'interested party'. In this case, that means a Bidder who submitted a Bid in this bidding process, and is the recipient of a Notification of Intention to Award.
- 2. The complaint can only challenge the decision to award the contract.
- 3. You must submit the complaint within the period stated above.
- 4. You must include, in your complaint, all of the information required by the Procurement Regulations (as described in Annex III).

6. Standstill Period

DEADLINE: The Standstill Period is due to end at midnight on [*insert date*] (local time).

The Standstill Period lasts ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of this Notification of Intention to Award.

The Standstill Period may be extended as stated in Section 4 above.

If you have any questions regarding this Notification please do not hesitate to contact us.

On behalf of the Employer:

Signature:	
Name:	
Title/position.	
The position.	
Telephone:	
Email:	

Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form – Not Applicable

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE FORM

This Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form ("Form") is to be completed by the successful Bidder¹. In case of joint venture, the Bidder must submit a separate Form for each member. The beneficial ownership information to be submitted in this Form shall be current as of the date of its submission.

For the purposes of this Form, a Beneficial Owner of a Bidder is any natural person who ultimately owns or controls the Bidder by meeting one or more of the following conditions:

- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares
- *directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights*
- directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Bidder

RFB No.: [insert number of RFB process] **Request for Bid No**.: [insert identification]

To: [insert complete name of Employer]

In response to your request in the Letter of Acceptance *dated* [*insert date of letter of Acceptance*] to furnish additional information on beneficial ownership: [*select one option as applicable and delete the options that are not applicable*]

(i) we hereby provide the following beneficial ownership information.

Details of beneficial ownership

		(Yes / No)
[include full name (last, middle, first), nationality, country of residence]		

OR

(ii) We declare that there is no Beneficial Owner meeting one or more of the following conditions:

- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares
- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights
- directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Bidder

OR

(iii) We declare that we are unable to identify any Beneficial Owner meeting one or more of the following conditions. [If this option is selected, the Bidder shall provide explanation on why it is unable to identify any Beneficial Owner]

- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the shares
- directly or indirectly holding 25% or more of the voting rights
- directly or indirectly having the right to appoint a majority of the board of directors or equivalent governing body of the Bidder]"

Name of the Bidder:*[insert complete name of the Bidder]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder: **[*insert* complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]_____

Title of the person signing the Bid: [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above: [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]_____

Date signed[insert date of signing]day of[insert month], [insert year]

^{*} In the case of the Bid submitted by a Joint Venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder. In the event that the Bidder is a joint venture, each reference to "Bidder" in the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form (including this Introduction thereto) shall be read to refer to the joint venture member.

** Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder. The power of attorney shall be attached with the Bid Schedules.

Letter of Acceptance

[letterhead paper of the Employer]

[date]

To: [name and address of the Service Provider]

This is to notify you that your Bid dated [date] for execution of the [name of the Contract and identification number, as given in the Special Conditions of Contract] for the Contract Price of the equivalent of [amount in numbers and words] [name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our Agency.

You are requested to furnish (i) the Performance Security within 28 days in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose one of the Performance Security Forms and (ii) the additional information on beneficial ownership in accordance with BDS ITB 45.1, within eight (8) Business days using the Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form, included in Section X, - Contract Forms, of the bidding document.

Note: Insert one of the 3 options for the second paragraph. The first option should be used if the Bidder has not objected the name proposed for Adjudicator. The second option if the Bidder has objected the proposed Adjudicator and proposed a mane for a substitute, who was accepted by the Employer. And the third option if the Bidder has objected the proposed Adjudicator and proposed the proposed Adjudicator and proposed the Employer.

We confirm that [insert name proposed by Employer in the Bid Data Sheet],

or

We accept that [name proposed by Bidder] be appointed as the Adjudicator

or

We do not accept that [name proposed by Bidder] be appointed as Adjudicator, and by sending a copy of this letter of acceptance to [insert the name of the Appointing Authority], we are hereby requesting [name], the Appointing Authority, to appoint the Adjudicator in accordance with ITB 47.1

Authorized Signature:	
Name and Title of Signatory: _	
Name of Agency:	

Attachment: Contract

Form of Contract

[letterhead paper of the Employer]

LUMP-SUM REMUNERATION

This CONTRACT (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the [day] day of the month of [month], [year], between, on the one hand, [name of Employer] (hereinafter called the "Employer") and, on the other hand, [name of Service Provider] (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").

[Note: In the text below text in brackets is optional; all notes should be deleted in final text. If the Service Provider consist of more than one entity, the above should be partially amended to read as follows: "...(hereinafter called the "Employer") and, on the other hand, a joint venture consisting of the following entities, each of which will be jointly and severally liable to the Employer for all the Service Provider's obligations under this Contract, namely, [name of Service Provider] and [name of Service Provider] (hereinafter called the "Service Provider").]

WHEREAS

- (a) the Employer has requested the Service Provider to provide certain Services as defined in the General Conditions of Contract attached to this Contract (hereinafter called the "Services");
- (b) the Service Provider, having represented to the Employer that they have the required professional skills, and personnel and technical resources, have agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract at a contract price of.....;
- (c) the Employer has received [*or* has applied for] a loan from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (hereinafter called the "Bank") [*or* a credit from the International Development Association (hereinafter called the "Association")] towards the cost of the Services and intends to apply a portion of the proceeds of this loan [*or* credit] to eligible payments under this Contract, it being understood (i) that payments by the Bank [*or* Association] will be made only at the request of the Employer and upon approval by the Bank [*or* Association], (ii) that such payments will be subject, in all respects, to the terms and conditions of the agreement providing for the loan [*or* credit], and (iii) that no party other than the Employer shall derive any rights from the agreement providing for the loan [*or* credit] or have any claim to the loan [*or* credit] proceeds;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

1. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, and the priority of the documents shall be as follows:

- (a) the Letter of Acceptance;
- (b) the Service Provider's Bid

- (c) the Special Conditions of Contract;
- (d) the General Conditions of Contract;
- (e) the Specifications;
- (f) the Priced Activity Schedule; and
- (g) The following Appendices: [*Note:* If any of these Appendices are not used, the words "Not Used" should be inserted below next to the title of the Appendix and on the sheet attached hereto carrying the title of that Appendix.]

Appendix A: Description of the Services

Appendix B: Schedule of Payments

Appendix C: Key Personnel and Subcontractors

Appendix D: Breakdown of Contract Price in Foreign Currency

Appendix E: Breakdown of Contract Price in Local Currency

Appendix F: Services and Facilities Provided by the Employer

Appendix G: Performance Incentive Compensation

Appendix H: Code of Conduct for Service Provider's Personnel

- 2. The mutual rights and obligations of the Employer and the Service Provider shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:
 - (a) the Service Provider shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - (b) the Employer shall make payments to the Service Provider in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

For and on behalf of *[name of Employer]*

[Authorized Representative]

For and on behalf of *[name of Service Provider]*

[Authorized Representative]

[*Note:* If the Service Provider consists of more than one entity, all these entities should appear as signatories, e.g., in the following manner:]

For and on behalf of each of the Members of the Service Provider

[name of member]

[Authorized Representative]

Performance Security

Option 1: (Bank Guarantee)

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [insert name and Address of Employer]

Date: _ [Insert date of issue]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that _ [insert name of Service Provider which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the Non-Consulting Services of _ [insert name of contract and brief description of the Non-Consulting Services](hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures] () [insert amount in words],1 such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiary needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum specified therein.

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance, and denominated either in the currency (ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the Day of, $2...^2$, and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

² Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion dateas described in GCC.The Service Provider should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, theService Provider would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor.Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Service Provider might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

Option 2: Performance Bond

By this Bond *[insert name of Principal]* as Principal (hereinafter called "the Service Provider") and *[insert name of Surety]* as Surety (hereinafter called "the Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto *[insert name of Employer]* as Obligee (hereinafter called "the Service Provider") in the amount of *[insert amount in words and figures]*, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, the Service Provider and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS the Service Provider has entered into a written Agreement with the Employer dated the ______ day of ______, 20 ____, for [name of contract and brief description of Non-Consulting Services] in accordance with the documents, plans, specifications, and amendments thereto, which to the extent herein provided for, are by reference made part hereof and are hereinafter referred to as the Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Condition of this Obligation is such that, if the Service Provider shall promptly and faithfully perform the said Contract (including any amendments thereto), then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. Whenever the Service Provider shall be, and declared by the Employer to be, in default under the Contract, the Employer having performed the Employer's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default, or shall promptly:

- (1) complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or
- (2) obtain a Bid or Bids from qualified Bidders for submission to the Employer for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the Employer and the Surety of the lowest responsive Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and Employer and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the Balance of the Contract Price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The term "Balance of the Contract Price," as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by Employer to the Service Provider under the Contract, less the amount properly paid by Employer to the Service Provider; or
- (3) pay the Employer the amount required by Employer to complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions up to a total not exceeding the amount of this Bond.

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the specified penalty of this Bond.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of one year from the date of the issuing of the Taking-Over Certificate.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the Employer named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Employer.

In testimony whereof, the Service Provider has hereunto set his hand and affixed his seal, and the Surety has caused these presents to be sealed with his corporate seal duly attested by the signature of his legal representative, this _____ day of _____ 20 ____.

SIGNED ON	on behalf of
By	in the capacity of
In the presence of	
SIGNED ON	on behalf of
Ву	in the capacity of
In the presence of	

Advance Payment Security

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary:[Insert name and Address of Employer]

Date: [Insert date of issue]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that [insert name of Service Provider, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Non-Consulting Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum *[insert amount in figures]* () *[insert amount in words]* is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of *[insert amount in figures]* () *[insert amount in words]*¹ upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

- (a) has used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of Services; or
- (b) has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

¹ The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Applicant on its account number [insert number] at [insert name and address of Applicant's bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, has been certified for payment, or on the *[insert day]* day of *[insert month]*, 2 *[insert year]*, whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No.758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.